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ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR®ND THE PERSON
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with Article 9 sections (3)(c) andl ¢¥ the Transparency Requirements (Traded
Securities in Regulated Markets) Law of 2007 (“Lawie, the members of the Board of Directors
and the Bank’s person responsible for the finarst@iements of Alpha Bank Cyprus Limited for
the year ended 31 December 2014, confirm thahedoést of our knowledge:
a) the annual financial statements which are presesriqzhges 18 - 124:
(i) were prepared in accordance with International iéied Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union and in accordance with tligions of Article 9 section (4) of
the Law, and

(i) give a true and fair view of the assets and liibdlj the financial position and the profit
or losses of Alpha Bank Cyprus Limited, and

b) the Directors’ report gives a fair review of theved®pments and the performance of the
business as well as the financial position of Al@enk Cyprus Limited together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertamtiéhich they face.

Members of the Board of Directors and person respaible of the Bank’s financial
statements

Sp. N Filaretos - Chairman

G. A. Georgiou — Managing Director

Ch. C. Giampannas — Vice-Chairman

A. M. Michaelides — Board Member

I. Rouvitha Panou — Board Member

Dr. A. K. Kritiotis — Board Member

I. S. Monastiriotis — Board Member

N. Mavrogenis — Board Member

D. Karatsis — Head of Financial Control Division

Nicosia, 20 April 2015



ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRETORS’ REPORT (cont.)

The Board of Directors of Alpha Bank Cyprus Limit@e “Bank”) presents to the members its
annual report and the audited financial statemehtbe Bank for the year ended 31 December
2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During 2014, the Bank continued to conduct full kiag operations by providing a wide range of
banking and financial services.

The Bank is a subsidiary of Alpha Bank S.A., whistregistered in Greece, and member of
Alpha Bank Group (the “Alpha Bank Group”)

REVIEW OF THE DEVELOPMENTS, POSITION AND PERFORMANC E OF
ACTIVITIES

Key financial figures From 1 January to

In € m. Change 31.12.2014 31.12.2013
Total income -1.7% 125.4 127.6
Total expenses -0.4% 53.8 54.0
Profit from operations before provisions -2.7% 71.6 73.6
Impairment losses and provisions to cover credit

risk -10.2% 155.1 172.8
Loss for the year after tax 20.0% -83.1 -103.9
Loss per share -52.1 cent -72.7 cent
In€m. 31.12.2014 31.12.2013
Net loans and advances to customers -23.7% 2,646.6 3,467.1
Deposits from customers 3.1% 2,0955 2,031.9

Net Interest income amounted to Euro 114.1 mil.jranease of 6.5% compared to Euro 107.1
mil. for the year 2013, mainly due to the reductidn23.4% in the interest expenses compared to
the reduction of 5.7% from interest income.

Total income of the Bank for the year 2014 amodiniteEuro 125.4 million, a decrease of 1.7%
compared to Euro 127.6 million for the year 2013jmy due to the reduction of net income from
fees and commissions and the profit from sale w#stments recorded in 2013.

Total expenses of the Bank for the year 2014 atealto Euro 53.8 million, a decrease of 0.4%
compared to Euro 54.0 million for the year 2013e Tost to income ratio was 42.9%, and is not
materially different to the year 2013 which was342.

Impairment losses and provisions to cover credk for the year 2014 amounted to Euro 155.1
million, a decrease of 10.2% compared to Euro 1#&#.&he year 2013. Allowance for impairment

losses amounted to Euro 792.3 million as at Decerithe 2014, and represent 23.0% of total
gross loans and advances to customers compar&dd® for the year 2013.



ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont.)

REVIEW OF THE DEVELOPMENTS, POSITION AND PERFORMANC E OF
ACTIVITIES (cont.)

Net loans and advances to customers amountedrtoZE@46.6 million as at December 31, 2014,
a decrease of 23.7% from December 31, 2013. Tefabslts from customers amounted to Euro
2,095.5 million, an increase of 3.1% from DecemB&r 2013. Net loans to deposits ratio was
126.3% compared to 170.6% at the end of 2013.

FINANCIAL REULTS

The results of the Bank are presented in the &tie of Comprehensive Income on page 18 of
the financial statements.

The losses for the year attributable to the owremmunted to €83,143,118 (2013: losses
€103,863,668).

DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors do not recommend the payroédividend for the year 2014 (2013: €nil).
RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is considered any financial or other factaattbreates a possibility of future decreases in
profitability.

Alpha Bank Group has implemented a comprehensamdwork for the prudent management of
risk and hazards based on the foremost supervigs@gtices and which, based on common
European legislations and prevailing system comimamking rules, principles and standards, is
continuously evolving with the passage of time idey to be applied in a coherent and effective
way in the daily operations of the activities ophAa Bank Group.

The main risks inherent due to the nature of djmrs of the Bank are credit risk, liquidity risk,
market risk (mainly interest and exchange ratgsrational risk and compliance risk.

The ultimate goal of the Alpha Bank Group is to@me internal corporate governance given the
evolving macroeconomic and financial environment.

The main objective of Alpha Bank Group during 20&4s to maintain the high standards of
internal corporate governance and compliance wék regulations and directives in order to
enhance confidence in its operational activitiea the provision of the appropriate financial
services.

Additionally, as of November 2014, Alpha Bank Grofglls within the scope of the Single
Supervisory Mechanism (SSM) — the new financial esvigory system which includes the
European Central Bank (ECB) and the Bank of Graeck being systemic banking institution, is
supervised directly by the European Central BarGRE



ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRETORS’ REPORT (cont.)

RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

The Single Supervisory Mechanism operates in catjom with the European Banking Authority,
the European Parliament, the Eurogroup, the Euro@anmission and the European Systemic
Risk Board within the framework of their respecto@mpetencies.

Also, as of 1 January 2014 Directive 2013/36/EEhef European Parliament and Council, of 26
June 2013 and Regulation 575/2013 of the Europealiafent and Council of 26 June 2013
(«CRD IV») came into force, which gradually intraguthe new capital adequacy framework for
credit institutions, in accordance with Basel thrsdards.

In light of the new supervisory and regulatory feamork for risk management, Alpha Bank Group
has strengthened its internal governance and gir&be the undertaking and management of risk
and adjusted its business model in order to fubynply with the more stringent regulatory
requirements and extensive guidelines which contterrhandling of data on all types of risk, the
collection of such data and its integration inte tequired submission of reports and accounts to
Management and the supervisory authorities.

A detailed description of risk management is presiim note 38 of the financial statements.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Capital adequacy — Ratios

On December 31, 2014 Common Equity Tier | (CE®)ia of the Bank was 15.1% (with
transitional provisions), Additional Tier | ratioas 17.6% (with transitional provisions) and total
Capital Adequacy ratio was 20.3% (with transitiopadvisions).

As of 1 January 2014, a new regulation known as @RdRa new directive known as CRD IV are
effective for the capital adequacy calculationse Thentral Bank of Cyprus has chosen to
gradually implement the new regulation and dirextbased on the transitional provisions which
were announced on 26 May 2014. Furthermore, on a9 2014 the Central Bank of Cyprus set
the minimum ratio for CETI at 8% with transitionabvisions on the capital requirements of Pillar
I. The Bank continues to satisfy the minimum cdpitaquirements of Pillar |1 and the
supplementary requirements of Pillar Il.



ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont.)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (cont.)

Capital adequacy — Alpha Bank A.E.

Within 2014 the Bank of Greece announced the abpiteds for the Greek banks taking into
account expected losses as defined in the Bas®tierario of the Blackrock Solutions assessment
The capital needs of Alpha Bank A.E reached € 282 which was covered by the increase in
share capital by €1.2 billion which was completeddarch 2014. The increase in share capital
has eased the repurchase of preference sharedtfeofdreek Government which took place in
April 2015.

Furthermore, at the end of 2014 the European deBdwrgk (ECB) announced the results of the
Comprehensive Assessment 2014 whereby Alpha Bailsécceeded in surpassing the minimum
requirement of 5.5% and 8% for the ratio of Comr&opity Tier | (CETI), both for the adverse

and baseline scenario for both static and dynassaraptions, with a capital surplus.

ranging between €1.3 billion and €3.1 billion. Theerall assessment arises from the incorporation
(Join Up) of the Asset Quality Review results (AQR) the Stress Test simulation. Based on the
announcement of ECB , the Common Equity TierBTQ of 31.12.2013 is adjusted based on
AQR methodology, by 1.8% or €942 mil. after tax.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

The improvement of the local economy and the gtratt changes promoted for the
implementation of the program agreed with Troik&xpected to stabilize the risks to which the
Bank is exposed. The continuous credit upgradgbenfCyprus economy by international credit
rating agencies, is expected to also reduce lityurdik.

The achievement of satisfactory profitability oEtBank will remain uncertain mainly due to the
level of Non Performing Loans.

The Bank will continue to follow a conservative mess plan with priority to:

a. Containment of past due loans and effective Renfiorming Loans management,
b. Maintaining and attracting new deposits,

c. Containment of operating expenses and incregseductivity, and

d. Continuous improvement in the quality of seryicevided to customers.



ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont.)

SHARE CAPITAL
There were no changes to the share capital of aim Buring the year.

As part of the acquisition of Emporiki Bank Cyprugd, on 30 March 2015 the Board of
Directors of Alpha Bank Cyprus Ltd increased tharsicapital of the Bank by issuing 14,974,189
ordinary shares of nominal value €0.85 in favouthef persons who, on th& March 2015, were
the registered shareholders of Emporiki Bank Ggprtd. As a result of the above issue, the
share capital of the Bank amounts to €148,303ddgitled into 174,474,178 ordinary shares of
nominal value €0.85 each.

BRANCHES

The Bank is currently comprised of a modern netwofk25 branches (2013:29) and other
specialized units which are effectively supportgddd Ms, internet banking and mobile banking.
The number of branches has decreased by 4 duringeér as part of the strategy to contain
operating expenses and increase productivity.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The members of the Board of Directors at the datkis report are presented below:

SP. N. Filaretos, Chairman

Ch. C. Giampanas, Vice-Chairman

G. A. Georgiou, Managing Director

A. M. Michaelides

Dr. A. K. Kritiotis

I. S. Monastiriotis

N. Mavrogenis

I. Rouvitha Panou (Appointed on 28 January 2015)



ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont.)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Introduction

Alpha Bank Cyprus Limited (hereinafter «the Banle»a subsidiary of Alpha Bank S.A., which is

listed on the Athens Stock Exchange. The corpagaternance framework which is applied by
the Bank aims to protect the interests of all dtakders. For the implementation of the Corporate
Governance Framework, the Bank follows the prowisiof a relative Directive issued by Central
Bank of Cyprus. Until August 2014, the Directive thie Central Bank for the Framework of

Principles of Operation and Criteria of Assessn@nBanks' Internal Governance and Internal
Control Systems of Banks applied. This was replabgdthe Directive on Governance and

Management Arrangements in Credit Institutions thiclw the Bank began harmonization

proceedings, which are ongoing. The operationfi®fBtank, as a member of Alpha Bank Group,
are also closely supervised by the parent company.

Ethics

The Bank applies the best business practices iadtivities, management, code of conduct for
Management and Employees between each other aadd®wlientele, the shareholders and other
relevant stakeholders.

Commitments

The Bank undertakes the following commitments wéthard to its business activities:

e Towards its clientele, the Bank undertakes to ml@them with full priority in services and a
continued improvement in the quality of receptimfigrmation and provided services.

e Towards its shareholders, the Bank commits to asmegoodwill and to secure a reasonable
return for its investments.

e Towards its personnel, the Bank undertakes to eedair reward, excellent working
conditions and the potential to progress based amitnand equal treatment without
discrimination.

e Towards society as a whole, the Bank undertakestively contribute towards progress and
to improve the basic elements of its cohesion wabiety, such as culture, education, health
and the environment.

Principles
Every activity of the Bank, whose ultimate purpasé¢he development and good standing of the

Group, is governed by principles imposed by Lathics, such as:

integrity and honesty,

objectivity and independence,

confidentiality and discretion,

conscious, disciplined and reasonable risk taking,
complete, accurate and truthful information,
corporate social responsibility .



ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont.)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (cont.)

Obligations
The above obligations and principles give rise tothier obligations for Management and

Employees which are recorded in the Staff Manuakddions issued by General Management and
in Circulars.

The Staff Manual contains the provisions which cotlee general duties of Employees, the
required confidentiality, the expected behaviorsaé of the Bank, the prohibition of discussion
and publication of topics of political nature, theeation of debt, the prohibition of gambling,
unauthorized duties, the prohibition of acceptiifgsgvhilst providing a service as a Director or
Employee of the Bank and the avoidance of confifisterest whilst performing transactions.

Circulars are used to regulate matters which irdlve adoption of regulatory and legislative
frameworks such as the enforcement of relevansliigpn regarding health and safety in the work
environment of the Group and the prohibition of &mng in all areas of the Bank without
exception.

Finally, the Bank enforces the Code of Banking Qanicbf the Cyprus Banking Association, of
which it is a member.

Board of Directors

The principal obligation and duty of the Board afdators is to continuously promote the long-
term economic value of the Bank and to defend thek® best interests whilst taking into
consideration the interests of other stakeholdetiseoBank.

The main duties of the Board of Directors during2@vere:

The supervision of Executive Management.

The approval of strategy and budget.

The supervision of internal control systems, riskhagement and regulatory compliance.
The supervision of the Bank's operations.

The Board of Directors convened on a regular bas@der to fulfill its duties. Within 2014, 13
board meetings took place.

The Board of Directors is comprised of Executived amon-Executive members. The non-
Executive independent members of the Board ofdire need to fulfill independence criteria
which are set by the provisions of Central BanlCgprus Directive in relation to the fithess and
probity of the members of the Board. The restrustuprocess of the Board of Directors which
began in 2014 following the Directive on Governaaocel Management, will be completed upon
approval by the Central Bank of Cyprus, so asriat@as, the majority of the members of the
Board of Directors and the Chairman are independent
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ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont.)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (cont.)

Board of Directors(cont.)

In accordance with the Article of Association oé tBank, the number of members of the Board of
Directors is between six and eighteen, unless wikerdecided in a General Meeting. At every
annual General Meeting, the 1/3 of the relevane®aors resign from their position. The Directors
who resign are those with the longest service ftbm date of their most recent election. A
departing Director is entitled to run for re-electi Each new Director who is appointed holds
position only until the next General Meeting, arath de reelected, but is not taken into account
when determining which Directors are to depart dase rotation. The Managing Director is not
subject to rotation and is not taken into accouhenvdetermining the Director to depart by
rotation. As a result of the harmonization wiktte tDirective on Governance and Management
Arrangements in Credit Institutions of 2014, théstmrg Articles of Association of the Bank are
under review.

At 31 December 2014, the Board of Directors coadistf the following:

Name Category Profession
Chairman Spyros N.Filaretos Non Executive Banking
Vice-Chairman Christos C. Giampanas Non Executive Banking
Members George A. Georgiou Managing Director Bagkin
Andreas K. Kritiotis Independent Nonr CEO of an Insurance
Executive Company
Andreas M. Michaelides Independent Non-Accountant/Business
Executive Consultant
loannis S. Monastiriotis Non-Executive Banking
Lazaros A. Papagarifallou  Non-Executive Banking
Nikolas A. Mavrogenis Executive — Banking
General Director
Operations

On 29.8.2014 Mr. Lambros Papalamprianou resignad the Board of Directors.

On 31.12.2014, Mr Spyros N. Flilaretos, ChristosGampanas, loannis S. Monastiriotis and
Lazaros A. Papagarifallou were executive officefghe parent company Alpha Bank A.E. In
January 2015 Mr. Christos C. Giampanas resigned fktpha Bank A.E. but remained as a non-
executive officer of the Board of Directors of tBank.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont.)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (cont.)
Board of Directors(cont.)

Mr Andreas Michaelides and Dr. Andreas K. Kriticdise non-executive members of the Board of
Directors. Mr Andreas M. Michaelides has been amjeoi as a senior independent director.

In accordance with Article 89 and 90 of the Articlef Association of the Bank, during the Annual
General Meeting on 15.10.2014, Mr Lazaros A. Papfadjau, Andreas Kiritiotis and Andreas
Michaelides were reelected to the Board of Directidrthe Bank.

As part of the restructuring plan of the BoardDafectors of the Bank, the Board of Directors

appointed Mrs. Irene Rouvitha Panou on 28/01/2@1& aew independent member of the Board
of Directors and simultaneously accepted the raesgign of Mr. Lazaros A. Papagarifallou who

served on the Board as a non-executive, non-imikgre¢ member.

The approval of the Central Bank of Cyprus is ot#di in order to appoint members to the Board
of Directors in accordance witbirective on the Assessment of the Fitness and ifyraif
Members of the Management Body and Managers of dkitbd Credit Institutions which
replaced in November 2014 the fitness and probigs€ssment Criteria) of Directors and
Managers of Banks Directive.

On the date of this report, the Board of Directmasisted of the following:

Name Category Profession
Chairman Spyros N.Filaretos Non Executive | Banking
Vice- Christos C. Giampanas Non Executive | Business Consultant
Chairman
Members George A. Georgiou Managing Director  Banking
Andreas K. Kritiotis Independent Non-{ CEO of an Insurancg
Executive Company
Andreas M. Michaelides| Independent Norj-Accountant/Business
Executive Consultant
loannis S. Monastiriotis Non-Executive Banking
Nikolas A. Mavrogenis Executive — SenigrBanking
Manager
Operations
Irene Rouvitha Panou Independent NoEconomist/ Business
Executive Consultant
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont.)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (cont.)
Board of Directors(cont.)
Remuneration of Executive Members

The remuneration and benefits of Executive and Exe&cutive Members are described in note 43
of the financial statements.

Board Committees

The Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee #nmedNominations / Internal Governance
Committee were active throughout the course of 20h& responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee have been delegated to the Remuneratiomiiitee of the parent company Alpha
Bank S. A., as approved by the Central Bank of Ggpr

Audit Committee

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committes approved by the Board of Directors are:

¢ Monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of therival control system and in particular
the functions of Internal Audit and Compliance.

e Evaluation of findings and recommendations of audit

e The submission of proposals to the Board of Dimecteegarding the appointment of
independent auditors.

The Committee convenes at least four times per ywamore frequently if required by
circumstances. During 2014 the Committee convenetihges.

As at 31 December 2014, the composition of the &@dimmittee was as follows:

¢ Andreas Michaelides, Chairman
e Christos C. Giampanas
e Andreas Kiritiotis

The Audit Committee confirms that it has complieihvthe independence procedures of internal
audit. This conclusion is based on:

The organizational structure of the Bank and tleetmgs held with the Internal Auditor
The assessment of the effectiveness of Internair@en
The assessment of other test audits.

As of 25 February 2015, the composition of the A@iimmittee is as follows:

e Andreas Kritiotis, Chairman
e |oannis Monastiriotis
¢ [rene Rouvitha Panou
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DIRECTORS' REPORTcont.)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (cont.)

Risk Management Committee

The main responsibilities of the Risk Managemenm@ittee, as approved by the Board of
Directors, are:

¢ The configuration and monitoring of risk takingadtrgies of all kinds, within the broader
framework of strategy and policies of the Bank

e The development of an internal risk managementesysand its integration into the
business related decision making process acrospturum of all activities of the Bank.

e The determination of the principles governing ms&nagement in order to detect, predict,
measure, monitor, control and address such rigkssistent with the applicable business
strategy and the adequacy of available resources.

¢ The evaluation on an annual basis of, the adeqaadyeffectiveness of risk management
policies and acceptable limits, the adequacy ofipirans and in general the capital
adequacy in relation to the amount and type ofeigbosure.

The Committee convenes at least four times a y@aring 2014 the Committee convened five
times.

As at 31 December 2014, the composition of the Rlakagement Committee was as follows:
¢ loannis Monastiriotis, Chairman
o George A. Georgiou
e Andreas Kiritiotis
As of 25 February 2015, the composition of the Rihagement Committee is as follows:
e Andreas M. Michaelides, Chairman

e Christos C. Giampanas
¢ Irene Rouvitha Panou
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DIRECTORS' REPORTcont.)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (cont.)

Nominations/Internal Governance Committee

The main responsibilities of the Nominations/ InedrGovernance Committee as approved by the
Board are:

o Assessment of the effectiveness of the Board oédbirs itself from the perspective of
corporate governance.

e The evaluation on an annual basis of the skilleykadge and expertise of the members
of the Board of Directors.

e The submission of proposals and the commencemémieaotation and replacement of
members of the Board of Directors.

The Committee convenes at least once a year or frempeently depending on the circumstances.
During 2014 the Committee met three times.

As at 31 December 2014, the composition of the Mations/Internal Governance Committee
was as follows:

e Christos C. Giampanas, Chairman
e George A. Georgiou
e Andreas M. Michaelides

As of 25 February 2015, the composition of the Nwatibns/Internal Governance Committee was
as follows:

e Christos C. Giampanas, Chairman
e Andreas Kiritiotis
e Andreas M. Michaelides

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% OF THE SHARE CAPI TAL

As at 31 December 2014 and 20 April 2015, the peacee of shareholders with direct or indirect
stake of more than 5% of the issued share cagitakdBank were as follows:

31 December 2014 20 April 2015
% %
Alpha Bank S. A. 100 100

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE BANK'S SHARE C APITAL

The direct or indirect shareholding in the Bankdhdby members of the Board of Directors is
described in note 42 of the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with related parties are describewta 43 of the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' REPORTcont.)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period are describatbie 46 of the financial statements.
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The independent auditors of the Bank, KPMG Limitbdyve expressed their willingness to
continue in office. A resolution giving authoritio the Board of Directors to set their
remuneration will be submitted at the Annual Gehigreeting.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Maria Malahtou Pampalli

Secretary

Nicosia, 20 April 2015



16
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying financial statésneh Alpha Bank Cyprus Limited (the
“Bank”) on pages 18 to 124, which comprise stegement of financial position as at 31 December
2014, the statements of comprehensive income, elsangequity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accountingcsliand other explanatory notes.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the FinantBtatements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the prapan of financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with International Ficial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and the requirements of the Cyprosganies Law, Cap. 113 and for such
internal controls that the Board of Directors deara necessary to enable the preparations of
financial statements free from material misstateimehether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hfisancial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Internatidtandards on Auditing. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirementsl glan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statseraenfree from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaundif evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The proeedselected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of materiabtatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assesssy the auditor considers the internal controls
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair pnéstéon of the financial statements, in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate incttimstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of tigyés internal controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting mdicised and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Directors, as wek\aluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaiseslifficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give &tamd fair view of the financial position of Alpha
Bank Cyprus Limited as at 31 December 2014, aritsdinancial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Intéynat Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the EU and the requirements of the Cyprus Compdraw, Cap. 113.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 44 of the financial stants which refers to existing uncertainties
arising from economic and political circumstancesagll as the recent developments in Cyprus
and Greece, which could adversely impact the ghbilitthe Bank to continue as going concern.
Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this teat

Report on Other Legal Requirements

Pursuant to the requirements of the Auditors aatugiry Audit of Annual and Accounts of 2009
and 2013 Act, we report the following:

e We have obtained all the information and explamestiove considered necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

¢ In our opinion, proper books of account have begpt by the Bank, so far as appears
from our examination of these books.

¢ The Bank’s financial statements are in agreemettt thie books of account.

e In our opinion and to the best of the informatiomitable to us and according to the
explanations given to us, the financial statemegnie the information required by the
Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, in the mannercpane.

¢ In our opinion, the information provided in the Bo@f Directors’ report on pages 3 to 12
is consistent with the financial statements.

Other matters

This report, including the opinion, has been preddor and only for the Bank's members as a body in
accordance with Section 34 of the Auditors andustay Audits of Annual and Accounts Laws of
2009 and 2013 and for no other purpose. We do inogiving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any otherson to whose knowledge this report may come
to.

Christos V Vasiliou, FCA
Certified Public Accountant and Registered Auditor
for and on behalf of

KPMG Limited

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Auditor
Esperidon 14,

1087 Nicosia, Cyprus

Nicosia, 20 April 2015
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ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Fees and commission income
Fees and commission expense
Net income from fees and commissions

Net profit/(loss) on changes of financial instrunsen
measured at fair value

Profit on disposal of investments available foesal
Other income from operations

Total Income

Loss on disposal of investment in subsidiary
Staff costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Impairment losses and provisions to cover creslit ri

Loss for the year before tax
Tax

Loss for the year after tax

Other comprehensive income recognised directly
to equity:

Amounts that may be reclassified in the statement
of comprehensive income

(Deficit)/Surplus on revaluation of investments
Transfer on disposal of investments available &be s
Other comprehensive expenses for the year

Total comprehensive expense for the year
attributable to the owners of the Bank

Loss per shar (€ cent)

From 1 January to

Note. 31.12.2014 31.12.2013

€ €

5 171.111.461  181.525.434
5 (57.017.452) (74.414.692)
114.094.009 107.110.742

6 10.542.385 14.835.973
6 (1.137.176)1.395.773)
9.405.209 13.440.200

7 359.604 (331.325)
36.794 6.018.279
8 1.465.717 _1.347.922

1.862.115 7.034.876

125.361.333 127.585.818

- (85.400)

9 (35.472.248)  (38.368.970)
20&21  (2.081.138) .312.510)
10 (16.237.117) (13.224.622)
(53.790.503) _(53.990.502)

11  (155.119.978) (172.842.090)

12 (83.549.148)  (99.246.774)
13 406.030 (4.616.894)

(83.143.118) (103.863.668)

18  (322.838) 3.933.619
18 (36.794) _ (5.945.997)
(359.632) _ (2.012.378)

(83.502.750) (105.876.046)
14 (52,13) (72,72)

The notes on pages 22 to 124 form an integralgfahte financial statements.



ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF BALANCE SHEET

Assets

Cash and deposits with Central Bank
Loans and advances to financial institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities available for sale

Derivative financial assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment property

Deferred tax

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Subordinated bonds

Deposits from financial institutions
Deposits from customers
Derivative financial liabilities

Tax

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Convertible capital securities
Reserves

Total equity
Total equity and liabilities

Off balance sheet items

Note

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

26
27
28
19
25
29

30
31
32

33

31.12.2014
€

74.864.630
220.435.526
2.646.639.610
341.575.175
1.279.360
24.278.021
876.551
2.022.985
12.092.185
3.707.055

19

31.12.2013
€

42.507.963
232.180.826
3.467.061.546
17.100.521
2.469.601
27.378.828
1.009.088

8.658.609
5.253.241

3.327.771.098

100.256.177
654.000.159
2.095.462.364
8.864.569
711.947
23.531.001

3.803.620.223.

100.274.358
1.102.232.585
2.031.940.141

15.669.463
711.947
24.344.098

2.882.826.217

3.275.172.592

135.575.000 135.575.000
64.000.000 64.000.000

245.369.881 _ 328.872.631

444.944.881 528.447.631

213.573.053

3.327.771.098 3.803.620.223.

231.735.540

The financial statements were approved by the BobRirectors on 20 April 2015.

Ch. C. Giampanas
Vice-Chairman

G. A. Georgiou
Managing Director

D. Karatsis

Head of Financial
Control Division

The notes on pages 22 to 124 form an integralgfdite financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Difference on

the conversion Convertible
Share Investment of share capital capital
Capital Share revaluation into euro Retained Total Securities Total
(note 30) Premium reserve reserve earnings reserves (note 31) Equity
€ € € € € € € €
1 January 2014 135.575.000 63.334.698 (79.395) 599.951 265.017.377 328.872.631 64.000.000 528.447.631
Total comprehensive expense for the year
Loss for the year - - - - (83.143.118)  (83.143.118) - (83.143.118)
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
Revaluation of investments available for
sale - - (322.838) - - (322.838) - (322.838)
Transfer to the statement of comprehensive
income on disposal of investments - - (36.794) - - (36.794) - (36.794)
31 December 2014 135.575.000 63.334.698 (439.027) 599.951 181.874.259 245.369.881 64.000.000  444.944.881
1 January 2013 118.575.000 15.334.698 1.932.983 599.951 368.881.04 386.748.677 - 505.323.677
Total comprehensive expense for the year
Loss for the year - - - - (103.863.668) (103.863.668) - (103.863.668)
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
Revaluation of investments available for
sale - - 3.933.619 - - 3.933.619 - 3.933.619
Transfer to the statement of comprehensive
income on disposal of investments - - (5.945.997) - - (5.945.997) - (5.945.997)
Transaction with the owners of the Bank
Issue of convertible capital securities - - - - - 64.000.000 64.000.000
Issue of share capital 17.000.000 48.000.000 - 48.000.000 - 65.000.000
31 December 2013 135.575.000 63.334.698 (79.395) 599.951 265.017.377 328.872.631 64.000.000 528.447.631

The share premium reserve is not available foridigion as a dividend.

The notes on pages 22 to 124 form an integralgddhte financial statements.
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ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operations

Loss for the year before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

Loss from sale of investment in subsidiary

Write off of property, plant and equipment

Profit on disposal of investment securities avdddbr sale
Profit on disposal of plant and equipment

Dividends received

Reversal of Provisions for litigation or arbitratidisputes
Impairment losses and provisions to cover cregit charged to the
statement of comprehensive income

Profit from operations before changes in working caital
Decrease in loans and advances to clients

Decrease in derivative financial assets

Decrease in other assets

(Decrease)/Increase in other liabilities

Decrease in deposits from financial institutions
Increase/(Decrease) in deposits from customers
(Decrease)/Increase in interest from bonds
(Decrease)/Increase

in derivative financial liabilities

Net cash flow from/(for) operations before tax

Tax paid

Net cash flow from/(for) operations

Cash flows from investing activities

Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiary company

Payments for the purchase of investment secustiagable for sale
Proceeds from disposal of investment securitiedable for sale
Payments for purchase of property, plant and egeiijtm
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payments for purchase of intangible assets

Dividends received

Net cash flows (for) / from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of shares

Issue of convertible capital securities
Net cash flows from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents for theaye
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

From 1 January to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
Note € €

(83.549.148) (99.246.774)

20 18.850 1.820.473
21 563.088 491.037
- 86.40
10 8452  450.514
(36.794) (6.018.279)
(9.041) (12.724)
8 (171.605) (225)
29(i) (188.000)  (13.916)

11 156.900.840 173.902.841
75.112.911  71.458.347
663%21.0 96.452.556

1.190.241 3.292.364

2.105.254 6.676.768
(625.097) 7.516.820

71(449.399) (343.938.638)

28283 (568.731.897)

(18.181) 97.647

(6.804.894) _ 13.461.188
326.554.154  (713.714.845)
25 (3.027.545) _ (3.677.038)

323.526.609 (717.391.883)

- 100
18  (765.251.500)(30.000.000)
440.454.008  209.117.427
20 (1.133.479)  (455.674)
57.702 12.724
21 $53D.  (564.422)
8 171.605 225

(326.132.215) _178.110.380

30 -
31 -

65.000.000
64.000.000
- _129.000.000

(2.605.606) (410.281.503)
37  257.823.204 668.104.707

37 255.217.598 _257.823.204

The notes on pages 22 to 124 form an integralgdite financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

INCORPORATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Alpha Bank Cyprus Limited (the “Bank”) was regigdrin Cyprus in 1960 as a limited
liability company in accordance with the requiretsef the Cyprus Companies Law,
Cap.113. On 13 September 2000, the Bank convestatatus to a Public Liability Company
according to the Companies Law, Cap. 113n 21 January 2003, the Bank was converted
from public to a private company according to tlepanies Law, Cap. 113.

On 27 December 2006, the Bank was renamed frorhaAPank Limited to Alpha Bank
Cyprus Limited in accordance with the requiremeaftthe Cyprus Company Law, Cap. 113.
The trade name continues to be “Alpha Bank”.

The Bank considers Alpha Bank S.A. as its parehtchvis registered in Greece and member
of Alpha Bank Group (the “Alpha Bank Group”)

The principal activity of the Bank is to providell banking services through a wide range of
banking and financial services.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepareccardance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the EarodJnion, in accordance with
Regulation 1606/2002 of the European Parliament twed Council of the European
Union on 19 July 2002.

Furthermore, the financial statements have beempaped in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Law 113 of CyprusthadSecurities and Cyprus Stock
Exchange Law and th&ransparency Requirements (Securities Admittedadirtg on a
Regulated Market) Law.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements relate to the fiscal ykar2014 to 31.12.2014 and they have
been prepared on the historical cost basis withdkeeption of the following assets and
liabilities which were valued at fair value:
- Derivative financial instruments
- Investments available for sale

(c) Functional and presentation currency
The amounts included in these financial statememés presented in Euro, unless
otherwise stated in the relevant notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (cont.)

(d) Adoption of new and revised International Finartial Reporting Standards (IFRSS)
and Interpretations
The accounting policies followed for the prepanataf the financial statements have
been consistently applied by the Bank in the y&%3 and 2014, after taking into
account the following new standards, amendmentstaridards and Interpretation 21
which were issued by the International Accountitgn8ards Board (IASB), adopted by
the European Union and applied on 1.1.2014:

The estimates and criteria applied by the Banteacthing a decision, which affect the

drafting of the financial statements, are basetiistorical information and assumptions

which , under the present conditions, are thoughbd reasonable. The estimates and
decision making criteria, are reassessed to tatkeconsideration current developments.
The consequences of potential changes are reflecteed financial statements during the

year that they occur.

e Amendment to International Financial Reporting Stardard 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”, tdnternational Financial Reporting Standard 12
“Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” and toternational Accounting
Standard 27 “Separate Financial Statements”: Investment E#it(Regulation
1174/20.11.2013

On 31.10.2012, the International Accounting StadslaBoard issued the above
amendment which defines “investment entities” amtroduces an exception for
investment entities from consolidating particulabsidiaries. An investment entity shall
not consolidate its subsidiaries or apply IFRS &mwtht obtains control of another entity.
Instead, an investment entity shall measure ansitnvent in a subsidiary at fair value
through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS %heTabove does not apply to
subsidiaries that are not held for the purposelbtéining returns from the investment,
but for providing services that relate to the irim@nt activities of the parent. However,
a parent of an investment entity, that is not ftael investment entity, shall consolidate
all entities that it controls, including those aafied through an investment entity
subsidiary.

The adoption of the above amendment by the Bank riwadmpact on its financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (cont.)

e Amendment to International Accounting Standard 32 “Financial Instruments:
Presentation”: Offsetting financial assets and riaal liabilities (Regulation
1256/13.12.2012)

On 16.12.2011, the International Accounting Staddd@oard issued an amendment to
IAS 32 regarding offsetting of financial assets dimdncial liabilities. The amendment
to IAS 32 relates to the addition of applicationdgunce concerning the right to offset.

The adoption of the above amendment by the Bank rmadmpact on its financial
statements.

e Amendment to International Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of assets™
Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financis¢tss(Regulation 1374/19.12.2013)

On 29.5.2013, the International Accounting StansldBdard issued an amendment to
IAS 36 with which it removed the requirement, inlweed following the issuance of
IFRS 13, to disclose the recoverable amount of eadh generating unit to which a
material amount of the carrying amount of goodwillintangible assets with indefinite
useful life has been allocated, regardless of wdredm impairment loss had been
recognized. Furthermore, the above amendment adted following disclosure
requirements:

e the recoverable amount of the asset (or cash-g@mgeranit) for which an
impairment loss has been recognized or reverseadgitire period,

¢ if the recoverable amount is fair value less co$tdisposal, the level of the fair
value hierarchy,

o for fair value measurements categorized withinll@vand level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy, a description of the valuation techngjaed the key assumptions used for
their determination, as well as the discount rateduif fair value less costs of disposal
was calculated using a present value technique.

The adoption of the above amendment by the Bank nwmdmpact on its financial
statements.

e Amendment of International Financial Reporting Stardard 39 “Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liakeidi (Regulation 1256/13.12.2012)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (cont.)

On 27.6.2013, the International Accounting Stansl@dard issued an amendment to IAS
39 which provides an exception to the requiremerttiscontinue hedge accounting when
the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terneidaor exercised. The exception is
provided when the over-the-counter (OTC) derivatiesignated in a hedging relationship
is novated to a central counterparty and at theesame the novation meets all the
following conditions:

. it arises as a result of laws or regulations,

. it achieves the replacement of the previous apatty with a central one which
becomes the new counterparty to each of the pamigdinally,

. no changes are expected to the contract’s irigtiahs other than changes directly

attributable to the change in the counterpartyrfgka in the collateral requirements, rights
to offset receivables and payables balances andehéevied).

The adoption of the above amendment by the Bank n@mdmpact on its financial
statements.

e |FRIC Interpretation 21 “Levies” (Regulation 634/13.6.2014)

On 20.5.2013, the International Accounting Stanslddard issued IFRIC 21 “Levies”
which addresses the accounting treatment of lempssed by governments. According to
IFRIC 21, a liability to pay a levy shall be recaggd in the financial statements when the
obligating event, that triggers the payment of léng/, occurs. The obligating event that
triggers the payment of the levy is defined asdhgvity of the entity that triggers the
liability in accordance with the relevant legistati

The adoption of IFRIC 21 had no impact on the foiahstatements of the Bank.
Except for the standards mentioned above, the EaropJnion has adopted the following

amendments to standards which are effective fouanperiods beginning after 1.1.2014
and have not been early adopted by the Bank.

e Amendment to International Accounting Standard 19 “Employee Benefits”: Defined
benefit Plans: Employee Contributiofi®egulation 2015/29/17.12.2014)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftet.2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (cont.)

On 21.11.2013 the International Accounting StansldBdard amended the requirements of
IAS 19 for the accounting of employee contributiohsit are linked to service but are
independent of the number of years of service. fp@snof contributions that are independent
of the number of years of service include those¢ dne a fixed percentage of the employee’s
salary, a fixed amount throughout the service gedodependent on the employee’s age. In
accordance with this amendment, the entity is pggohito recognise such contributions either
as a reduction of service cost in the period incltihe related service is rendered (as if a short
term employee benefit is recognised) or to contilugttribute them to periods of service.

The amendment will have no impact on the Bank sittee Bank applies a “Defined
Contribution” scheme

Improvements to International Accounting Standards:
— cycle 2010-201ZRegulation 2015/28/17.12.2014)
— cycle 2011-2013Regulation 1361/18.12.2014)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftet.2014

As part of the annual improvements project, therimtional Accounting Standards Board
issued, on 12.12.2013, non- urgent but necessaepdments to various standards.

The Bank is evaluating the impact from the adoptbthe above amendments on its financial
statements.

In addition, the International Accounting StandaBisard has issued the following standards
and amendments to standards which have not yet &g@pted by the European Union and
they have not been early applied by the Bank.

International Financial Reporting Standard 9 “Financial Instruments”
Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelr.2018

On 24.7.2014, the International Accounting Stansld8dard completed the issuance of the
final text of IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, whioBplaces the existing IAS 39. The new
standard provides for significant differentiatioims the classification and measurement of
financial instruments as well as in hedge accognthm indication of the new requirements is
presented below:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (cont.)
Classification and measurement

Financial instruments shall be classified, at ahitecognition, at either amortized cost or at fair
value. The criteria that should be consideredHerinitial classification of the financial assets
are the following:

I.  The entity’s business model for managing the fingrassets and
[I. The contractual cash flow characteristics of tharcial assets.

In addition, IFRS 9 permits, at initial recognitjoequity instruments to be classified at fair

value through other comprehensive income. The pgii@cludes equity instruments held for

trading. Moreover, with regards to embedded dexeat if the hybrid contact contains a host

that is within the scope of IFRS 9, the embeddedvaive shall not be separated and the
accounting treatment of the hybrid contact shod@ddbsed on the above requirements for the
classification of the financial instruments.

With regards to the financial liabilities, the malifference is that the change in the fair value
of a financial liability initially designated atifavalue through profit or loss shall be recognised
in profit or loss with the exception of the effadftchange in the liability’s credit risk which
shall be recognised directly in other comprehensigeme.

Impairment

Contrary to the existing IAS 39, under which anitgrmecognizes only incurred credit losses,
the new standard requires the recognition of tifetiexpected credit losses if the credit risk of
the financial instrument has increased signifigasthce initial recognition. If the credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial retitign, 12-month expected credit losses shall
be recognized.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (cont.)
Hedging

The new requirements for hedge accounting are nadigned with the entity’'s risk
management. The main changes in relation to theemurequirements of IAS 39 are
summarized below:

e more items become eligible for participating in @dging relationship either as hedging
instruments or as hedged items,

o the requirement for hedge effectiveness tests tavitiein the range of 80%-125% is
removed. Hedge effectiveness test is performedressiyely only and under certain
circumstances a qualitative assessment is condidelequate,

e in case that a hedging relationship ceases to fectigk but the objective of risk
management regarding the hedging relationship rmsnaiie same, the entity shall
rebalance the hedging relationship in order tsBathe hedge effectiveness criteria.

It is noted that the new requirements for hedgewaating do not include those that relate to
macro hedging, since they have not been finaliztd y

Except for the aforementioned modifications, thsu#@ice of IFRS 9 has resulted in the
amendment of other standards and mainly of IFR®&re/new disclosures were added.

The Bank is evaluating the impact from the adoptiblFRS 9 on its financial statements.

Amendment to International Financial Reporting Stardard 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”to International Financial Reporting Standard 12 “Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities” ando International Accounting Standard 28‘Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures”: Investment Entities: Applying tGensolidation Exception

Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelr.2016

On 18.12.2014, the International Accounting StadslédBoard issued an amendment to the
above standards with which it clarified that theaption provided in IFRS 10 and IAS 28, for
the preparation of consolidated financial statesamd the application of the equity method
respectively, applies also to a parent entity ithiata subsidiary of an investment entity which
measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value atiog to IFRS 10. In addition, with the
aforementioned amendment it was clarified thatdiselosure requirements of IFRS 12 apply
to the investment entities which measure all oirthebsidiaries at fair value through profit or
loss.

The adoption of the above amendment by the Bamlotisexpected to have an impact on its
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (cont.)

Amendment to International Financial Reporting Stardard 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” ando International Accounting Standard 28 “Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures”: Sale or contribution of assetsmMeein an investor and its associate or joint
venture

Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelr.2016

On 11.9.2014 the International Accounting Stand&uaiard issued an amendment to IFRS 10
and IAS 28 in order to clarify the accounting treaht of a transaction of sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associag@nrventure. In particular, IFRS 10 was
amended in order to be clarified that in case #éisad result of a transaction with an associate
or joint venture, a parent loses control of a sdibsy, which does not contain a business, as
defined in IFRS 3, it shall recognise to profitless only the part of the gain or loss which is
related to the unrelated investor’s interests at #ssociate or joint venture. The remaining
part of the gain from the transaction shall be iated against the carrying amount of the
investment in that associate or joint venture. dlditon, in case the investor retains an
investment in the former subsidiary and the forsasidiary is now an associate or joint
venture, it recognises the part of the gain or lesalting from the remeasurement at fair
value of the investment retained in that formerssdibry in its profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interests in the nesoeste or joint venture. The remaining part of
the gain is eliminated against the carrying amaifnthe investment retained in the former
subsidiary.

In IAS 28, respectively, it was clarified that tpartial recognistion of the gains or losses shall
be applied only when the involved assets do nostitote a business. Otherwise, the total of
the gain or loss shall be recognised.

The Bank is examining the impact from the adoptibthe above amendment on its financial
statements.

¢ Amendment to International Financial Reporting Stardard 11 “Joint Arrangements”

Accounting for acquisition of interests in jointayptions
Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelr.2016

On 6.5.2014 the International Accounting Stand&dard issued an amendment to IFRS 11
with which it is clarified that when an entity adegs an interest in a joint operation in which
the activity of the joint operation constitutes @simess (as defined in IFRS 3), it shall apply
all of the principles on business combinations antiag in IFRS 3, and other IFRSs, that do
not conflict with the guidance in IFRS 11. In aduht it shall disclose the information
required by IFRS 3 and other related standards &pplies both when acquiring the initial
interest in the joint operation that constitutebusiness and when acquiring an additional
interest.

The Bank is examining the impact from the adoptibthe above amendment on its financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (cont.)
International Financial Reporting Standard 14 “Regulatory deferral accounts”
Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelr.2016.

On 30.1.2014 the International Accounting Stand&aisrd issued IFRS 14. The new standard
addresses the accounting treatment and the dise®eequired for regulatory deferral accounts
that are maintained in accordance with local lagjish when an entity provides rate-regulated
goods or services.

The scope of this standard is limited to first-tiadopters that recognized regulatory deferral
accounts in their financial statements in accordawith their previous GAAP. IFRS 14
permits these entities to capitalize expenditues tton-rate-regulated entities would recognize
as expense.

The above standard does not apply to the finastaééments of the Bank.
International Financial Reporting Standard 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelr.2017

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” wssued on 28.5.2014 by the
International Accounting Standards Board. The nemdard is the outcome of a joint project
by the IASB and the Financial Accounting StandaBisrd (FASB) to develop common
requirements as far as the revenue recognitiorciptes are concerned.

The new standard shall be applied to all contragts customers, except those that are in
scope of other standards, such as financial leasssirance contracts and financial
instruments.

According to the new standard, an entity recogniggenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount tflatte the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those gawdservices. A new revenue recognition
model is introduced, by applying the following figteps:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in ¢batract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the penénce obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the etitgfies a performance obligation.
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The performance obligation notion is new and ire&ffepresents a promise in a contract with
a customer to transfer to the customer eithera(gpod or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct; or (b) a series ofidi@tgoods or services that are substantially the
same and that have the same pattern of transfiee tcustomer.

The new IFRS 15 supersedes:

(a) IAS 11 “Construction Contracts”;

(b) IAS 18 “Revenue’;

(c) IFRIC 13 “Customer Loyalty Programmes”;

(d) IFRIC 15 “Agreements for the Construction ofaREstate”;

(e) IFRIC 18 “Transfers of Assets from Customeesid

(f) SIC-31 “Revenue—Barter Transactions Involvingwrtising Services”.

The Bank is examining the impact from the adoptibi-RS 15 on its financial statements.

Amendment to International Accounting Standard 1 “Presentation of Financial

Statements”: Disclosure Initiative
Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelr.2016

On 18.12.2014 the International Accounting Stansl@dard issued an amendment to IAS 1
in the context of the project it has undertakeranalyze the possibilities for improving the
disclosures in IFRS financial reporting. The maimeadments are summarized below:

— the restriction to disclose only a summary of digant accounting policies is removed;

— it is clarified that even when other standards iregapecific disclosures as minimum
requirements, an entity may not provide them & thiconsidered immaterial. In addition,
in case the disclosures required by the IFRS aeffinient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, the entihals consider whether to provide
additional disclosures;

— itis clarified that the line items that IFRS remuio be presented in the balance sheet and
the statements of profit or loss and other comprsite income are not restrictive and
that the entity may present additional line itehresadings and subtotals;

— it is clarified that in the Statement of Comprehemsincome the share of other
comprehensive income of associates and joint vestaccounted for using the equity
method shall be separated into:

e amounts that will not be reclassified subsequebtiyrofit or loss and
e amounts that will be reclassified subsequentlyraifor loss;

— itis clarified that the standard does not spettifypresentation order of the notes and that
each entity shall determine a systematic manngrregentation taking into account the
understandability and comparability of its finahatatements.

The Bank is examining the impact from the adoptbthe above amendment on its financial
statements.
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e Amendment to International Accounting Standard 16“Property, Plant and Equipment” and
to International Accounting Standard 38 “Intangible Assets”: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelr.2016

On 12.5.2014 the International Accounting Stand&dard issued an amendment to IAS 16
and IAS 38 with which it expressly prohibits theeusd revenue as a basis for the depreciation
and amortization method of property, plant and opeint and intangible assets respectively.
An exception is provided only for intangible assatd only when the following conditions are
met:

(a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a meafsteeenue, ie when the right over the
use of the intangible asset is expressed as aidanat revenue to be generated in such a
way that the generation of a specific amount oenexe determines the end of the right of
use, or

(b) when it can be demonstrated that the revenue amdcdhsumption of the economic
benefits are highly correlated.

The Bank is examining the impact from the adoptbthe above amendment on its financial
statements.

¢ Amendment to International Accounting Standard 16“Property, Plant and Equipment” and
to International Accounting Standard 41“Agriculture”; Bearer Plants

Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelr.2016

On 30.6.2014 the International Accounting Stand&dard issued an amendment to IAS 16

and IAS 41 with which it clarified that bearer pignwhich are living plants that:

a) are used in the production or supply of agricultpraduce;

b) are expected to bear produce for more than onegyexnd

c) have remote likelihood of being sold as agricultym@duce, except for incidental scrap
sales

shall be accounted for based on IAS 16 instead$f41.
The above amendment does not apply to the actvifiethe Bank.

¢ Amendment to International Accounting Standard 27 “Separate Financial Statements”:
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelr.2016

On 12.8.2014 the International Accounting Stand&dard issued an amendment to IAS 27
with which it provides the option to use the equityethod to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in rdity's separate financial statements. In
addition, with the above amendment it is clarifiedt the financial statements of an investor
that does not have investments in subsidiarieshlgt investments in associates or joint
ventures,
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which under IAS 28 are accounted for with the gguitethod, do not constitute separate
financial statements.

The Bank is examining the impact from the adoptbthe above amendment on its financial
statements.

Improvements to International Accounting Standards— cycle 2012-2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelr.2016

As part of the annual improvements project, therimtional Accounting Standards Board
issued, on 25.9.2014, non- urgent but necessarga@ments to various standards.

The Bank is evaluating the impact from the adoptbthe above amendments on its financial
statements.

(e) Estimates, decision making criteria and signifiant sources of uncertainty

The estimates and criteria implemented by the Bamlecision making which impact the
preparation of the financial statements are based historical information and
assumptions which under present conditions, agendd to be reasonable.

The estimates and criteria for decision makingreessessed to take into consideration
current developments and the consequences fromt@dtehanges are recognised in the
financial statements during the period in whichytbecur.

The Bank, in the context of applying accountindiges and preparing financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, conducts agBrand assumptions which impact
the amount of recognised income, expenses andsasstiabilities. The use of estimates
and assumptions is an integral part of the recimgmdf accounting figures which mainly
relate to the following:

e Fair value of assets and liabilities
For assets and liabilities traded in active markids determination of their fair value is
based on quoted, market prices. In all other cedetermination of fair value is based
on valuation techniques that use observable magetto the greatest extent possible. In
cases where there is no observable market datdaithealue is determined using data
that are based on internal estimates and assuraign determination of expected cash
flows, discount rates, prepayment probabilitiepatential counterparty default.
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(e) Estimates, decision making criteria and signifiant sources of uncertainty ¢ont)

Impairment losses of financial assets

The Bank, when performing impairment tests on |laamg advances to customers, makes
estimates regarding the amount and time of futash dlows. Given that these

estimates are affected by a number of factors sihhe financial position of the
borrower, the net realizable value of any colldtena the historical loss ratios per
portfolio, actual results may differ from thoseimstted. Similar estimates are used in the
assessment of impairment losses of securitiesififbsis available for sale or held to
maturity.

Impairment losses of non — financial assets

The Bank, at each balance sheet date, assessagpforment non — financial assets, and
in particular property, plant and equipment, inwe=tt property, goodwill and other
intangible assets. Internal estimates are used smraficant degree to determine the
recoverable amount of the assets, i.e. the higaevden the fair value less costs to sell
and the value in use.

Income tax

The Bank recognizes the amounts of current andréeféncome tax based on estimates
concerning the amount of taxable profits, base@vbith the amounts of tax expected to
be paid or recovered in the current and futureogeriare determined. Estimates are
affected by factors such as the practical impleatent of the relevant legislation, the
expectations regarding the existence of future iexarofit etc. Future tax audits,
changes in tax legislation and the amount of taxabbfit actually realised, may result in
tax payments other than those recognized in thendial statements of the Bank. Any
adjustments are recognizes in the year in which tihalized.
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(e) Estimates, decision making criteria and signifiant sources of uncertainty ¢ont)

e Provisions and contingent liabilities
The Bank recognises provisions when it estimateg th has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated lbgtiaand it is almost certain that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required tdtkethe obligation. In contrast, when it
is probable that an outflow of resources will bguieed, or when the amount of liability
cannot be measured reliably, the Bank does notgréee a provision but it provides
disclosures for contingent liabilities, taking intmnsideration their materiality. The
estimation for the probability of the outflow aslixes for the amount of the liability are
affected by factors which are not controlled by Benk, such as court decisions, the
practical implementation of the relevant legislatend the probability of default of the
counterparty, for those cases which are relatélde@xposure to off-balance sheet items.

The estimates and judgments applied by the Bamkaking decisions and in preparing
the financial statements are based on historidaknmation and assumptions which at
present are considered appropriate. The estima@guglgments are reviewed on an
ongoing basis in order to take into account curriditions, and the effect of any
changes is recognized in the period in which thieneses are revised.

e Going concern assumption
The financial statements have been prepared basdfieogoing concern assumption.
Despite the recent developments in the economitcament of Cyprus and taking into
account the capital restructuring of the Bank asitroeed in notes 39 and 44 of the
financial statements, the Board and ManagemenhefBank consider that the Bank is
able to continue its operations as a going concern.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been apptiedsistently for the years being reported
in the statement of comprehensive income and thgeptation of the financial position of the
Bank.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translateuro using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liaddliienominated in foreign currencies at the

reporting date are retranslated to Euro using Xabange rate on that date. Foreign currency
differences arising on translation are recognisethe statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominatetbirign currencies that are measured at

historical cost are retranslated into Euros udirgdurrency rate at the date of the transaction.
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Interest receivable

Interest receivable is recognised in the staternéromprehensive income on an accruals
basis. Interest receivable includes interest vegde from loans and advances and financial
assets available for sale as well as from derigdtnancial instruments.

Interest expense
Interest expense is recognised on an accrual basis.

Income and expenses from fees and commissions
Income from fees and commissions is recognisedrdc@pthe completion of the transaction
in order to correlate with the cost of the serpoavided.

Dividend Income
Income from dividends is recognized in the finahstatements when it is received.

Expenses on improvements, repairs and maintenance

The expenses for the alteration or improvementuwlidimgs or improvements on leasehold
premises are capitalised and depreciated basduedadtor reported in accounting policy for
property, plant and equipment.

The cost for repairs and maintenance of buildings @her plant and equipment is charged in
the statement of comprehensive income in the yeahich it is incurred.

Segment analysis

An operating segment is a component of the Bank éhgages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expensesdimguincome and expenses related to
transactions involved with other segments of thekBaThe segments’ results are reviewed
regularly by the Board of Directors of the Bank take decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performdaloidity, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

Financial Instruments

Recognition date

Acquisitions or disposals of financial assets regplito be delivered within the time limit as
prescribed in the regulations and standard rulabefrelevant market, are recognised at the
date of transaction thus the date when the Bardoisd to acquire or dispose such assets.
Derivatives are recognised on the date of the cawialdransaction. Amounts due to credit
institutions, customers deposits, placements wigldit institutions and loans and advances to
customers are recognised as soon as the Bank esceivgrants funds to the contracting
parties, unless a financial asset or liabilitya$ measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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Financial Instrumentgcont.)

Initial recognition of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments duritige initial recognition depends on the

acquisition purpose and their characteristics. filtincial instruments are initially measured

at fair value plus transaction expenses directtyiired during the acquisition or the issuance
of such financial assets or liability, unless afinial asset or liability is measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Bank derecognizes financial assets when the ftass from the financial assets expire,
or when the contractual right to receive the céshd of the financial assets is transferred and
at the same time both risks and rewards of ownersine transferred. Any rights or
obligations created on derecognition are sepaeategnised as assets or liabilities.

The Bank derecognizes financial liabilities whes ¢bntractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are effsand the net amount is shown on the

statement of financial position only when the Béals a legal right to offset the assets against
the liabilities and intends to settle them on aloedis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are recognised on a net balsismben this is permitted by the
accounting standards, or when income and expensssgafrom a group of similar
transactions.

Measured at amortised cost

The amortized cost of a financial asset or liapilits the amount at which initially measured,
less any repayments of capital , plus or minusctimaulative amortization of any difference
between the initial amount and the maturity amquealculated using the effective interest
method after deducting any impairment.
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Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be receiveddiban asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participantthat measurement date, in the principal
market for the asset or liability or, in the abseraf a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Bank measures the fair value of assets aniitiedtraded in active markets based on

available quoted market prices. A market is reghiateactive if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, mgiecing service or regulatory agency, and

those prices represent actual and regularly ocwumarket transactions on an arm’s length
basis. Especially, for the measurement of secsritiee Bank uses a particular range of prices,
within the bid-ask spread, in order to charactettimeprices as prices of an active market.

In every other circumstance, the fair value of fiicial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by the use of valuatteohniques, appropriate in the
circumstances, and for which sufficient data to soea fair value are available, maximizing
the use of relevant observable inputs and minirgizile use of unobservable inputs. If
observable inputs are not available, other modeluts are used which are based on
estimations and assumptions such as the determinattiexpected future cash flows, discount
rates, probability of counterparty default and prgpents. In all cases, the Bank uses the
assumptions that 'market participants’ wouldwisen pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic lpgstrest.

Assets and liabilities which are measured at falue or for which - fair value is disclosed-,
are classified according to the inputs used tosomestheir fair value as follows:

e Level 1 inputs: quoted market prices (unadjusteddtive markets,

e Level 2 inputs: directly or indirectly observabiguts,

e Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs used by thekBanto the extent that relevant
observable inputs are not available.



39
ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

Financial Instrumentgcont.)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables, originated by providing agdisbctly to the borrowers are measured
initially at fair value including transaction costSubsequently, loans and receivables are
measured at amortized cost using the effectived ynetthod. Loans and receivable includes
accrued interest and are stated net of provisibbad and doubtful debts.

The Bank assesses as at each balance sheet dateemthere is evidence of impairment in
accordance with Alpha Bank Group policy and theegahprinciples and methodology set out
in IAS 39 and the relevant implementation guidamegoarticular, the steps performed are the
following:

(a) The criteria of assessment on an individual azollective basis

The Bank, in accordance with Alpha Bank Group pol@n impairment, assesses for
impairment on an individual basis the businessdoainthe wholesale sector. Importance is
attached to the Wholesale Banking sector loans targpecific loans in the Retail Banking

sector.

For the remainder of loans the impairment teserégpmed on a collective basis.

The Bank has determined the criteria that constittigger events for the assessment of
impairment.

Loans which are individually assessed for impairhaard found not impaired are included in
groups, based on similar credit risk charactegstind assessed for collective impairment.

For the purpose of the collective impairment exsarcithe Bank groups the portfolio into
homogenous populations, based on common risk desisics, and based on strong
historical statistical base, performs an analyste which it captures and defines impairment
testing, by segment population.

The statistical data is examined and assessec:lbgsponsible Division.

Additionally, the Bank recognizes impairment fosdoevents that have been incurred but have
not reported (IBNR). The calculation of the impagmh loss in these cases takes into account
the period between the occurrence of a specifiaiteaad the date that it becomes known
(Loss Identification Period).
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(b) Methodology in determining future cash flows fom impaired loans

For the purpose of the collective impairment , Bamk has accumulated a significant amount
of historical data, which includes the value of thans being impaired (loss given default —
LGD) after any measures taken to secure colleatibtoans, including the realization of
collateral securities of any nature.

For loans being impaired on an individual basis,amount of the recoverable amount of each
loan is determined after taking into account thmeetivalue of money. The cash flows are
discounted at the loans’ interest rate.

An impairment loss is recognized to the extent thatrecoverable amount of the loan is less
than the carrying amount.

(c) Interest income recognition of impaired loans
Interest income on impaired loans is recognize@dbas the carrying value of the loan net of
impairment at the loans’ interest rate.

(d) Impairment recognition- Write-offs
Amounts of impaired loans are recognized in allosgaaccounts until the Bank decides to
write them off.

In particular, the Bank proceeds to write off os when it is estimated that loans are
uncollectable and all legal recourse for theirextion has been completed.

(e) Recoveries

If in a subsequent period, after the recognitiorth&f impairment loss, events occur which
require the impairment loss to be reduced, or the® been a collection of amounts from
loans and advances previously written-off, the veces are recognized in impairment losses
and provisions to cover credit risk.

A detailed analysis of impairments is included aten38 of the financial statements.
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Derivatives are classified at fair value through pofit or loss

The Bank uses derivative financial instruments saglturrency and interest rate swaps and
forward rate agreements to hedge for the markee pisks arising from operating, financing
and investing activities. Derivatives that do noblify for accounting are considered to be
trading instruments.

Derivatives are initially recognized at cost. Supsmtly, the derivatives are measured at fair
value. The fair value of currency and interest sat@p is considered to be estimated price to
be received or paid by the Bank which would patetminate the currency and interest swap
at the end of a reporting period taking into acdtotlre current creditworthiness of the
contracting parties. The fair value of the forwaatke agreements is the market price at the
reporting period. Any adjustments at fair value r@gnized in the comprehensive income.

Investments available for sale
Investments available for sale are investments lwimay be sold for liquidity purposes or
because of market risk changes and include shagasyry bills and government bonds.

Available for sale investments are measured amastid fair value, based on current market
price for securities listed on Stock Exchange. eBtmnents in unlisted securities are presented
at fair value estimated using recognised valuatipdels and indicators adjusted on the
specific circumstances of the issuer or based enfittancial results, the current financial
situation and the prospects of the issuer compaitdthose of similar companies listed on
Stock Exchange where current market prices exist.

Interest on treasury bills and government bondsclwvhare held as available for sale is
recognised as interest receivable using the efiedtiterest rate method. Dividends received
from available for sale shares are recognizedheranhcome from operations in the statement
of comprehensive income as soon as the right wiveds deemed final.

Profits or losses from the change in fair valuerésognised directly in equity, in the
investments revaluation reserve. When the invedtnsedisposed the overall profit or loss
previously recognised in the investments revalnateserve is transferred to the statement of
comprehensive income. When the Bank holds mora tre investment with the same
security, it is considered that such investmengssatd on the basis of the weighted average
cost of capital method.
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Losses incurred from the impairment of such invesits are recognised in the net loss from
the change in fair value of financial instrumemtghie statement of comprehensive income. A
significant or prolonged decrease in fair valueanfinvestment equity instrument below cost
represents on objective indication of impairmemtdpplication of the above, the Bank defines
as “significant” a decrease above 20% related éodbst of the investment. Respectively,
“prolonged” is considered a decrease in fair vddakow cost of investment for a continuous
period exceeding one year. When the impairmemw&stments available for sale takes place
the accumulated loss which was included in theestant of financial position is transferred to
the statement of comprehensive income. If evemsuro following the recognition of
impairment loss this will result in a decreasehia already recognised impaired amount, these
amounts are recognized as income in the incomensgait, only in the event that it concerns
bonds. In contrast, impairment losses in sharé@sterests in mutual funds are not reversed in
the results.

During the year ended 31 December 2014 there wasndication of impairment of
investments available for sale.

Impairment of assets

The Bank assess at each reporting period the ngreyinount of its assets in order to find out
whether there is any objective evidence that aatasay be impaired. If any such evidence
exists, the Bank estimates the recoverable amduhtibasset. The recoverable amount of an
asset is the higher of an asset’s fair value lestsdo sell and the value in use. The value in
use is the present value of expected future castsffrom continuing use of the asset and
from its disposal at the end of its useful life eTlimpairment is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income as an expense.

Retirement Benefit scheme

The Bank operates a defined contribution plan. Ag pf the plan the Bank deposits a

defined, on a case by case basis, contributiom independent fund. The Bank has no further
obligation, legal or constructive, to deposit aasttier contributions, in the circumstance that
the fund does not have the sufficient assets tercthe claims of personnel which are derived
from their current and previous service. The cbntibns are recognized as part of staff costs
on an accruals basis.

The Bank does not operate a defined benefit plan.
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Investments in immovable property

These investments are initially recognized at ciostreasing with any transaction expenses
related to its acquisition. After initial recogiti they are valued at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated losses from inmesit.

Subsequent expenditure increases the value ofrtdpeqty, alternatively are recognized as a
separate property, only when it is very likely thatfuture economic benefit will arise.
Maintenance and repairs expenses of the propertg recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. For depreciation purpodesuseful life has been set equal to the
properties in use, using the straight line method.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are stated at historic cost tegsreciation on buildings and any losses
from impairment. Plant and equipment are statedhigtoric cost less accumulated
depreciation. The historic cost includes expemtiestly associated with the acquisition of
property and equipment. The cost of material ratious and other expenses are included in
the carrying value of the asset or it is recognaedeparate asset when it is probable that the
Bank will incur future economic benefits in relatito the asset and the costs can be measured
reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basisuch a way that the cost less the estimated
residual value is being depreciated over the expeciseful economic life of the assets.
Annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Premises and improvements on leasehold premises 50 years
Plant and equipment 3-10 years

No depreciation is calculated on land. They areéh@w reviewed for possible impairment.

Amortisation on leasehold premises is estimatesuoh a way so as to write off the revalued
amount of the leasehold by equal annual installmenér the period of the lease.

The residual values and the useful lives are rexieand adjusted at each reporting period, if
considered necessary.

On disposal of property, plant and equipment tlifedince between the net receipts and the
net carrying value is debited or credited to tlaeshent of comprehensive income.
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Intangible assets

Computer application software

Computer application software programs are statedoat less accumulated depreciation.

Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basisuch a way that the cost less the estimated
residual value of the intangible assets is beingrtised over the expected useful economic

life of the assets. Amortization is calculated @kfvs:

Computer application software 3 years
Computer software of the Bank 5 years

Expenses incurred for the maintenance of compyigication software programs are charged
in the statement of comprehensive income for tla yewhich they incur.

Tax

Tax on income is provided for in accordance with tdx legislation and tax rates which apply
in Cyprus where the Bank carries on its operatanmis recognised as an expense in the year
in which the income arises.

Increase of special contribution for the defence ren interest income

The special contribution for the defence rate derast income was increased from 15% to
30%, with effect from 29 April 2013. Special cobtition for the defence is payable by
Cyprus tax residents only and applies for both @aysand legal persons receiving interest
income which is not incurred in the ordinary cour§éhe company’s activities.

Immovable property tax
The immovable property tax rates has increase@@@B (legislation passed in April 2013) at
rates ranging between 0,6% and 1,9% of the immevatdperty value at 1 January 1980.

Special tax levy on bank deposits

Special tax levy on financial institutions was e&sed from 0,11% to 0,15% with effect from
1 January 2013. According to current legislatgpecial tax levy is imposed on deposits as at
the end of the previous year and is payable in égual quarterly installments.

Deferred tax

Provision for deferred tax is made on all tempoudifferences between the carrying values of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting pagps and their tax base. Deferred tax is
calculated at the tax rates applying at the year eAny deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences are recognisethdéoextent that it is expected that taxable
profits will be available in the future.

Any adjustment in deferred tax, which is due tonges of tax rates, is presented in the
statement of comprehensive income or in the resaweording to where the original debit or
credit for the deferred tax was initially recorded.
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Deferred taxcont.)

The tax expense, both current and deferred, isrdedoin the statement of comprehensive
income, unless it relates to items which have lbeattly recorded to equity and as such the
tax which relates to these items is directly reedrtb equity.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts (except for thosesidered to be insurance contracts) are
contracts that require the issuer to make spegfaganents to reimburse the holder for a loss
that is incurred because a specified debtor failmiéke a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such findngisrantees are granted to banks, financial
institutions and other organisations on behalfusftomers for the granting of loans and other
bank facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised at\falue on the date of the granting thereof
and subsequently they are evaluated on the bagig diighest amount out of:

(@) The amount of initial recognition less, if anyhe amount of accumulated
amortisation recognised; and

(b) The best cost estimation required for thelesatint of the relevant commitment at
the end of the reporting period. These estimatiare based on the experience with
similar transactions and previous loss reports #rey are supplemented by the
evaluations of the Management

Any increase of the liability related to such gudess is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. The Bank has not recograsgdamounts relating to financial
guarantee contracts in the statement of comprefeirgiome.

Other assets

Non-current assets which are acquired via auctigrate not immediately available for sale or
do not anticipate to sell within one year are pmése in Other Assets and are valued at the
lower of cost (or carrying amount) and fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flovs) ead cash equivalents consist of cash and
of loans and advances to financial institutions atier securities, the maturity of which does
not exceed three months from their acquisition.datéhis category, balances with the Central
Bank of Cyprus as part of the minimum reserve megoént on deposits is included.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

Definition of Related parties
In accordance with IAS24, related parties for thakbare:
a) the parent company Alpha Bank S.A and legal estitrteich constitute for the Bank or its

parent:

R Subsidiaries,
ii. Joint ventures,
iii. Associates.

b) Related parties for the Bank also include the H@lld=inancial Stability Fund and its
subsidiaries given that within the framework for3864/2010 the Hellenic Financial
Stability Fund acquired participation in the Boawtl Directors but also in important
committees of Alpha Bank S.A. and as a consequé&nge assumed that it exercises
significant influence over them.

¢) Individuals who are key management personnel areir tblose relatives. Key
management personnel are comprised of membere &@dhrd of Directors of the Bank ,
members of the Executive Committee of the Bank e&®iclose relatives are considered
to be spouse as well as their first class relateved those dependent on them and their

spouse.

Furthermore, the Bank discloses transactions an@mubalances with companies, in which
the above individuals exert control or common aalnt¥ore specifically, disclosure involves
individuals who hold a higher than 20% stake irhscmmpanies.

Subordinated bonds

Subordinated bonds consists of bonds that are méxexd) at fair value and represents proceeds
from the issue. The amortised cost is the faiueaf securities issued after deducting interest
payments plus the cumulative amortization using éfiective interest method of any
difference between the initial amount and the arhcatmmaturity date. The bonds are
classified as secondary capital (Tier Il Capitalj the purposes of calculating the capital
adequacy ratio.

The effective interest method is a method of calind) the amortized cost of a financial asset
or financial liability (or group of financial assetr financial liabilities) allocating income or
interest expenses during the period concerned. rd&leinterest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipich correspond to the expected life of
the instrument or, when appropriate for a shoreiod, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

Share capital
The ordinary shares are classified as equity.

The difference between the fair value of the casrsition received and the nominal value of
share capital issued is recognised in share premium

Incremental costs directly attributable to the éssf ordinary shares are recognised as a
deduction from equity.

Convertible Capital Securities

The convertible capital securities are of indeéimtaturity financial instruments issued by the
Bank. The Bank may at its sole discretion at aie$, taking into account its financial position
and solvency, elect to cancel an interest paymeuat imon cumulative basis.

Any interest payment not paid is no longer due pagable by the Bank. The convertible

capital securities may be redeemed back at theetisc of the Bank and after the approval of
the Central Bank of Cyprus at their nominal valond any accrued interest but excluding any
interest payments previously cancelled, at 30 Sapee 2019 or on any interest payment date.
The convertible capital bonds are obligatory coteeinto ordinary shares of the Bank on the
occurrence of a Contingency event or a viabilitgerdv The conversion price is constant and
cannot be lower than the nominal value of the Bauokdinary shares.

These financial instruments are classified as ggais they do not include a contractual
obligation for the Bank to repay the holder in caslother financial asset. The convertible
capital bonds are classified as Tier 1 capitattierpurpose of calculating the capital adequacy
ratio.

Provisions for litigation and arbitration of dispst

Provisions for litigation and arbitration of dispatare recognized when:

(a) the Bank has a present obligation (legal ostaoctive) as a result of a past event

(b)it is probable that an outflow of resources edying economic benefits to settle the
obligation and

(c) may be a reliable estimate of the amount obttigyation.

The Bank will secure legal advice on the amounthaf provision of specific cases and
arbitration of disputes.

The amount recognized as a provision is the béisha@e of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporpiegod, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the facts and circumstanof any litigation or arbitration
proceedings.

Where the effect of the time value of money is matethe amount of the provision is the
present value of estimated future expendituresaggddo be required to settle the obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

Provisions for litigation and arbitration of dispa{cont.)
When a separate liability is measured, this mds&iyti outcome may be considered the best
estimate of the liability.

Operating leases
Leases on assets arising where the Bank does dettake substantially all the risks and
rewards arising from ownership of the assets agsified as operating leases.

The rent paid on a monthly basis on the operateésgds is debited in the statement of
comprehensive income based on the straight lineadedver the life of the lease.

Comparatives
The comparative amounts included in the finandi&tlesnents are restated where necessary to

conform to the presentation of the current year.
OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Bank, in reassessing the presentation of irdtom by operating segment and taking into
consideration the information that the Bank’s Dioes receive, who are responsible for the
allocation of resources and assessing the perfaenah its banking sectors, identified the
following operating segments:

Retail Banking
Corporate Banking
Treasury

Other

The below table presents the income, expenses,jigaairments, profit/(loss) before tax and
certain information on assets and liabilities withard to the above segments.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont.)

31.12.2014

Net Interest Income

Net Commission Income
Other Income

Total Income

Total Expenses

Loan Impairments
(Loss)/Profit before Tax
Assets

Liabilities

Capital expenditure
Depreciation

31.12.2013

Net Interest Income

Net Commission Income
Other Income

Total Income

Total Expenses
Loan Impairments

(Loss)/Profit before Tax

Assets

Liabilities
Capital expenditure
Depreciation

Retail

Corporate

49

Banking Banking Treasury Other Total
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
36.680  36.098 41.316 - 114.094
7.950 1.455 - - 9.405
- - 1.862 - 1.862
44.630 37.553 43.178 - 125.361
(21.500) (9.026) - (23.264) (53.790)
(78.615) (76.505) - - (155.120)
(55.485) (47.978) 43.178 (23.264) (83.549)
1.484.455 1.162.185 636.875 44.256 3.327.771
1.910.110 185.352 754.000 33.364 2.882.826
- - - 880 880
848 327 - 906 2.081
Retail Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Other Total
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
42.548 39.055 25.508 - 107.111
11.516 1.924 0 - 13.440
- - 7.035 - 7.035
54.064 40.979 32.543 - 127.586
(22.935) (8.872) - (22.184) (53.991)
(86.058) (86.784) - - (172.842)
(54.929) (54.677) 32.543 (22.184) (99.247)
1.592.493 1.874.569 291.789 44.769 3.803.620
1.845.311 186.629 1.202.233 41.000 3.275.173
- - - 974 974
941 364 - 1.007 2.312
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont.)

Retail Banking

Includes all individuals (Retail banking customeppfessionals and small businesses, which
are operating in Cyprus and abroad. Through iendr network it handles all deposit
products, consumer mortgage products and corpdoates, liquidity products, letters of
quarantee, letters of credit , and debit and ciedits of the above customers.

Corporate Banking

Includes all Medium and Large Businesses which aperating in Cyprus. It handles all
liquidity products, corporate loans, and lettergoérantee, and letters of credit of the above
businesses.

Treasury
Includes the activity of the Dealing Room on therbank markets (FX Swaps, Bonds, Inter-

bank placements — loans etc.)

Other

Includes the operating expenses of the Managerhahtate not classified to other sectors of
the Bank.

NET INTEREST INCOME

From 1 January to

31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €

Interest income
Deposits with the Central Bank of
Cyprus 35.593 137.675
Loans and advances to financial
institutions 3.963.445 1.291.390
Loans and advances to customers 160.751.870 1741
Derivatives held for risk mitigation 2.000.694 36407
Government bonds 4.342.887 1.168.732
Corporate bonds 16.972 877.811
Total interest income 171.111.461 181.525.434
Interest expense
Deposits from financial institutions (4.620.351) 4.005.406)
Deposits from customers (49.317.379) (67.772.114)
Subirdinated bonds (3.079.722) (2.637.172)
Total interest expense (57.017.452) (74.414.692)

Net interest income 114.094.009 107.110.742
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NET INCOME FROM FEES AND COMMISSIONS

Fees and commission income
Commission income

Income from fees

Income from study fees

Total fees and commissions income

Fees and commission expenses

Expenses from fees
Commission expenses

Total fees and commissions expenses

Net income from fees and commissions

From 1 January to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €

5.816.956 10.036.859
4.697.944 4.745.198
27.485 53.916

10.542.385 14.835.973

(725.178)  (720.537)
(411.998)  (675.236)

(1.137.176) (1.395.773)

9.405.209  13.440.200

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) ON CHANGES OF FINANCIAL INSTRU MENTS MEASURED

AT FAIR VALUE

Surplus/(Deficit) on revaluation of derivatives thébr

trading

OTHER INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Revenue from foreign exchange transactions
Expenses from foreign exchange transactions —

unrealized loss
Dividend income

From 1 January to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €

359.604 (331.325)

_359.604 331.325)

From1 January to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €

1.2924.11 1.372.586

- (24.889)
171.605 225

1.465.717 1.347.922
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STAFF COSTS

From 1 January to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013

€ €
Wages and salaries 32.559.423 33.805.267
Other staff costs 547.080 563.797
Contribution to Provident Fund 2.365.745 3.999.906

35.472.248 38.368.970

The number of employees of the Bank as at 31 Deeei2014 amounted to 743 employees
(2013: 737 employees).

OTHER EXPENSES

From 1 January to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013

€ €
Advertisement and promotion expenses 1.748.790 91062
Rents payable 1.343.589 1.436.255
Repairs and maintenance 535.907 649.736
Write off of property, plant and equipment 85.521 50414
Professional expenses 3.528.850 1.324.406
Legal fees 2.780.953 1.866.770
Subscriptions for card use (VISA) 914.363 1.107.345
Computer maintenance and supplies 846.214 1.142.143
Insurance 682.146 758.445
Electricity 916.841 925.829
Other expenses 2.853.943 2.134.115

16.237.117  13.224.622

The write off of property, plant and equipment tesato the closure of certain branches of the
Bank as part of the restructuring plan.
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11. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND PROVISIONS TO COVER CREDI T RISK

31.12.2014 31.12.2013

Note € €
Impairment losses on loans and advances to
customers 17 156.900.840 173.902.841
Proceeds from written off debts (1.780.862)(1.060.751)

155.119.978 172.842.090
12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TAX
The loss for the year before tax is stated aftarging the following items:

From 1 January to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013

Note € €

Directors’ remuneration:

Executive Directors 43(a) 584.422 594.220

Non-Executive Directors 43(a) 55.000 55.000
Independent auditors' remuneration for statutoditau

of annual accounts 50.000 50.000
Independent auditors' remuneration for other review

services 4.500 4.500
Independent auditors' remuneration for other non-
audit services 156.441 45.632
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 20 1.518.050 1.820.473
Amortization of intangible assets 21 563.088 4971.03
Rent payable 10 1.343.589 1.436.255

13. TAX
From 1 January to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
Note € €

Overseas tax — previous years - 2.434.280
Special bank levy 3.027.546 3.443.064
Deferred tax - credit 23 _ (3.433.576) (1.260.450)

(Credit) / Debit for the year (406.030) 4.616.894
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13. TAX (cont.)

The Bank is taxed for corporation tax purposethatrate of 12,5% on taxable profits of the
year. Taxable profits are not subject to spe@atribution for defence.

Additionally, tax losses incurred from 2006 onwsrdan be carried forward and offset against
taxable profits for a period limited to five year§&roup companies can offset losses against
profits arising during the same tax year.

The special tax levy came into force on 14 Aprill20 Effective from 1 January 2013 the
special tax levy payable by financial institutioms total deposits, excluding deposits from
other financial institutions, was increased fromi18p to 0,15%, on balances as at 31
December of the previous year.

The Bank has been tax reviewed up until 2007 andursently in the process of being
reviewed for the years 2008-2011. As the tax revawld potentially not recognize the
productivity of certain expenses, it is likely tHatther tax could be imposed regarding those
years not reviewed by the tax authorities.

Reconciliation of tax based on the taxable incomé &x-based accounting (loss)/profit of
the Bank

From 1 January to

31.12.2014 31.12.2013
% € % €

Accounting loss before tax (83.549.148) (99.246.774)
Tax calculated at applicable tax rates (nominal

tax rate) 12,50 (10.443.644) 12,50 (12.405.847)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax

purposes (0,37) 305.305 (0,58) 567.727
Tax effect of allowances and income not

subject to tax 0,38 (314.190) 0,29 (283.338)
Tax effect of loss for the year (8,40) 7.018.953 (10,94) 10.861.008
Overseas tax — previous years - - (2,45 2.434.280
Special Tax Levy (3,62) 3.027.546 (3.47) 3.443.064
Tax as per statement of comprehensive

income (effective tax rate) 0.49 (406.030) (4,65) 4.616.894

The Bank has not recognized deferred tax assetsraing to €19.696.311 as it is not likely
that a future economic profit will be available g which the Bank may use the benefit in
conjunction with the fact that they can only bansferred and offset against income in the
next five years.
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LOSS PER SHARE
Loss per share is calculated by dividing the lassttie year attributable to the owners of the

parent company by the weighted average numbesoédsordinary shares during the year.

From 1 January to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013

Losses attributable to the owners (€) (83.143.118)03.863.668)
Weighted average number of shares 159.500.000 _142.833.333
Loss per share (€ cent) (52.13) (72,72)

CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH CENTRAL BANK

31.12.2014 31.12.2013

€ €
Cash and cash equivalents 11.414.291 20.014.125
Balances with Central Bank of Cyprus 63.450.33922.493.838

74.864.630 42.507.963

Deposits with the Central Bank of Cyprus bear edetbased on the interbank rate of the
relevant period and currency.

The exposure of the Bank to market risk, interatt risk and analysis of the above assets at
maturity and currency are disclosed in note 3$effinancial statements.

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

31.12.2014 31.12.2013

€ €
Placements with Alpha Bank Group 174.132.668228.001.653
Placements with other financial institutions 46.353 4.179.173

220.435.526 232.180.826

The exposure of the Bank to market risk, interat risk and analysis of the above loans and
advances to financial institutions at maturity andrency are disclosed in note 38 of the
financial statements.
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17. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Loans and advances to customers

Allowance for impairment losses

31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €

3.438.924.971 .45K845
(792.285.361(698.693.899)

2.646.639.610 3.467.061.546

The fair value of loans and advances to customgpsoaimated to their carrying amount as
presented in the statement of financial positidteradeducting the provision for impairment

(note 40).

Analysis by industry sector

Manufacturing

Tourism

Trade

Buildings and construction
Business and loans to individuals
Other sectors

Analysis by geographical region
Cyprus

Greece

Other European countries
Other countries

31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €

74.366.099 69.322.788
117.790.789 121.230.211
144.431.632 138.138.951
1.097.674.497 1.747398.

1.892.676.440 841X77.467
111.985.514 _ 105.019.130

3.438.924.971 4.165.755.445

2.302.772.145 2.952.674.507
3.430.324 4.239.218
992.617.412 1.061.990.424
140.105.090 _ 146.851.296

3.438.924.971 4.165.755.445

The exposure of the Bank to credit risk and amslgEloans and advances to customers by
industry sector, by geographical region and by nitgtis disclosed in note 38 of the financial

statements.

During the year loans with carrying value €676 mikre transferred to a company of Alpha
Bank Group. In essence all the risks and rewardswhership have been transferred and as
such, they were derecognized from the statemefimaricial position.
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (cont.)

Allowance for impairment losses

2014
1 January

Impairment losses on loans and advances to cussqimete.11)

Unwinding of interest

Impairment losses on loatransferred
Amounts used for write offs
Exchange difference

2013
1 January

Impairment losses on loans and advances to custo(nete.11)

Unwinding of interest
Amounts used for write offs
Exchange difference

INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

Investments available for sad fair value

Government bonds and debentures
Corporate bonds and shares

Listed in Stock Exchanges
Non Listed

Geographical analysis based on issuer’s region:
- Cyprus
- Greece
- Germany
- Luxembourg
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Impairment
allowance
reserve
€

698.693.899
156.900.840
42.207.136
(19.570.154)
(92.770.180)

6.823.820
792.285.361
493.874.732
173.902.841
41.698.307
(7.418.865)
(3.363.116)
698.693.899
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €
319.310.043 15.449.950
22.265.132 1.650.571
341575.175  17.100.521
339.924.604 15.449.950
1.650.571 1.650.571
341575175  17.100.521
52.526.190 17.100.521
248.075.875 -
20.358.548 -
20.614.562 -
341575.175  17.100.521
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18. INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (cont.)

The non listed securities include the Bank's irdieie the company JCC Payments Systems
Limited. The corporate bonds relate to financiatimtions.

The movement of investments available for sales ifpbows:

Government
bonds and Corporate bonds
debentures and shares Total
€ € €

31.12.2014
1 January 15.449.950 1.650.571 17.100.521
Additions 744.422.500 20.829.000 765.251.500
Matured/Disposed Securities (443.721.000) - (44B00D)
Interest receivable 4.342.887 16.972 4.359.859
Interest received (849.716) (243.151) (1.092.867)
Revaluation transferred from financial

position on disposal 36.794 - 36.794
Revaluation transferred to equity (371.372) 11.740 (359.632)
31 December 319.310.043  22.265.132 341.575.175
31.12.2013
1 January 46.228.347 145.983.700 192.212.047
Additions 30.000.000 - 30.000.000
Matured/Disposed Securities (64.500.000) (137.832).2 (202.017.232)
Interest receivable 694.230 - 694.230
Interest received (656.674) (1.119.472) (1.776.146)
Revaluation transferred from financial

position on disposal (106.246) (5.839.751) (5.945.997)
Revaluation transferred to equity 3.790.293 143.326 3.933.619
31 December 15.449.950 1.650.571 17.100.521

The analysis of the above assets at maturity dateported in note 38 of the financial
statements.
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19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ASSETS & LIAB

Derivatives nominal value
Foreign exchange derivatives
Futures

Currency swaps

Total derivatives

Fair value of derivatives

Foreign exchange derivatives
Futures
Currency swaps

Total derivatives

31.12.2014

Assets
€

Liabilities
€

ILITIES)
31.12.2013
Assets Liabilities
€ €
8.716 -

67.987.874 941.156.161 247.035.573 1.339.778.822

67.987.874 941.156.161 247.044.289 1.339.778.822

67.987.874 941.156.161 247.044.289 1.339.778.822

31.12.2014 31.12.2013
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
€ € € €
- - 51 -
1.279.360 8.864.569 2.469.550 15.669.463
1.279.360 8.864.569 2.469.601 15.669.463
1.279.360 8.864.569 2.469.601 15.669.463
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

1 January 2014

Additions

Disposals

Write offs

Transfer to investment property
Transfer to other assets

31 December 2014

1 January 2013
Additions
Disposals

Write offs

31 December 2013

Land (note 2)
€
5.671.333

(2.022.985)

(559.068)
3.089.280

5.671.333

5.671.333

Buildings

and improvements

on leasehold

premises (note 1,2)

33.571.598
289.513
(712.473)

33.148.638

34.325.851
109.612

(863.865)
33.571.598

Plant and Equipment

€
19.237.364
843.966
(620.316)
(258.830)

19.202.184

19.630.814
346.062
(117.697)

(621.815)
19.237.364
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Total

€
86285
1.133.479
(1.332.789)
(258.830)
2.022.985)

(559.068)
55.440.102

23968
455.674
(117.697)

(1.485.680)
58.480.295
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont.)

Buildings
and improvements Total
on leasehold Plant and Equipment
Land (note 2) premises (note 1,2)
€ € € €
Depreciation
1 January 2014 - 13.707.863 17.393.604 31.101.467
Charge for the year - 895.253 622.797 1.518.050
Disposals - (636.320) (610.948) (1.247.268)
Write offs - - (210.168) (210.168)
31 December 2014 - 13.966.796 17.195.285 31.162.081
1 January 2013 - 13.095.039 17.338.818 30.433.857
Charge for the year - 1.034.162 786.311 1.820.473
Disposals - - (117.697) (117.697)
Write offs - (421.338) (613.828) (1.035.166)
31 December 2013 - 13.707.863 17.393.604 31.101.467
Net book value
1 January 2013 5.671.333 21.230.812 2.291.996 29.194.141
31 December 2013 5.671.333 19.863.735 1.843.760 27.378.828
31 December 2014 3.089.280 19.181.842 2.006.899 24.278.021

Note 1:As part of the restructuring plan, the Bank praeeeduring 2014 in closing several braches. Assaltr¢he value recognized as cost for the modificaéind
improvement of leasehold properties have beenesmritff from cost and accumulated depreciation. fidgtebook value of the written off values on 31 Bmber 2014
amounts to €76.154.

Note 2:The recoverable value of land and buildings isless than its book value.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

1 January 2014
Additions

Write offs

31 December 2014

1 January 2013
Additions

Write offs

31 December 2013

Amortization

1 January 2014
Charge for year
Write offs

31 December 2014

1 January 2013
Charge for the year
Write offs

31 December 2013

Net book value
1 January 2013

31 December 2013

31 December 2014

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Cost of construction

Transfer from property, plant & equipment

31 December 2014

Amortization
31 December 2014

Net book value
31 December 2013

31 December 2014
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Computer

Software

of the Bank
€

7.633.707
430.551

8.064.258

7.070.246
564.422

(961)
7.633.707

6.624.619
563.088
7.187.707

6.134.543
491.037

(961)
6.624.619

935.703
1.009.088
876.551
Land
€

2.023.98
2.022.985

2.022.985
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INVESTMENTS IN PROPERTY (cont.)

The fair value of investment property on 31.12.2@t#bunted to €6.5 mil. The fair value of
immoveable property is calculated in accordancé wie methods described in note 2 and is
ranked according to the hierarchy of fair valud_avel 3 having made use of information
provided from case investigations and data rejatrproperties of similar characteristics and
consequently included a wide range of non-obseevdata on the market.

DEFERRED TAX
Difference
between
depreciation
Tax and capital
losses allowances Total
€ € €
31.12.2014
1 January 9.600.000 (941.391) 8.658.609
Credit in the statement of comprehensive income 53587 (20.011) 3.433.576
31 December 13.053.587 (961.402) 12.092.185
31.12.2013
1 January 8.177.274 (779.115) 7.398.159

Credit in the statement of comprehensive income_1.422.726 (162.276) 1.260.450

31 December 9.600.000 _(941.391) 8.658.609
The deferred tax assets and liabilities arise frioenfollowing:

31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €
Deferred tax asset
Tax losses 13.053.587 9.600.000

Deferred tax liability
Difference between depreciation and (961.402) (941.391)
capital allowances

Deferred tax asset 12.092.185 8.658.609

Deferred tax is provided for all temporary diffeces under the liability method using the
applicable tax rates (Note 13). In case of taxdedbe applicable tax rate is 12.5%.
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31.12.2014  31.12.2013

€ €
Other receivables and prepayments 1.584.030 530.90
Assets from auctions 559.068 -
Interest prepayments 1.563.957 4.722.338

3.707.055 5.253.241

TAX
31.12.2014  31.12.2013
€ €
Corporation tax payable 711.947 711.947

31.12.2014  31.12.2013
€ €

The movement of the account is analysed as follows:

26.

1 January 711.947 (1.488.359)
Charge for the year 3.027.545 5.877.344
Payments (3.027.545)  (3.677.038)

31 December

711.947 711.947

SUBORDINATED BONDS

Subordinated bonds at amortised cost

1 January

Interest payable

Payments

31 December

31.12.2014  31.12.2013
€ €

100.274.358 100.176.711
3.079.722 2.637.172
(3.097.903) _(2.539.525)

100.256.177 100.274.358
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SUBORDINATED BONDS(cont.)

The Board of Directors of the Bank has approved ilseie of 1m bonds with 10 years
duration and a nominal value of € 100 each whickeHzeen offered to a limited number of
investors in Cyprus and abroad. The bonds weredssn 30 May 2008 and have been placed
on 31 December 2008 in the Cyprus Stock Exchangeeney are traded.

The Subordinated bonds may, at the option of thekBae redeemed in whole, at their
principal amount together with accrued intereste fyears after their issue date, or on any
interest payment date thereafter, subject to tloe ponsent of the Central Bank of Cyprus.

The Subordinated bonds bear a floating interest wdtich is set at the beginning of each
interest period and is valid for that specific net& period.

The floating interest rate is equal to the 3-morihsibor in force at the beginning of each
interest period plus a margin of 2.80%. The Subatdid bonds are not secured and in case of
dissolution of the Bank, their repayment shall dall in priority the repayment of the
obligations of the Bank over the depositors andathgr creditors of the Bank.

DEPOSITS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

31.12.2014 31.12.2013

€ €
Amounts due to companies of Alpha Bank Group 624.9% 1.066.460.919
Amounts due to other financial institutions 32.2833 35.771.666

654.000.159 1.102.232.585

The exposure of the Bank to liquidity risk and gse of deposits from financial institutions
by maturity is disclosed in note 38 of the finahsiatements.
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DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

31.12.2014 31.12.2013

€ €
Current 487.582.217 562.046.878
Savings 10.335.835 7.378.228
Fixed term or notice 1.597.544.3121.462.515.035

2.095.462.364 2.031.940.141

The exposure of the Bank to liquidity risk and gsed of deposits from customers by
maturity are disclosed in note 38 of the finanstatements.

OTHER LIABILITIES

31.12.2014 31.12.2013

€ €
Accrued expenses 5.415.620 3.554.467
Provisions for litigation and arbitration (Note i) 77.000 265.000
Other payables 16.602.840 19.158.369
Taxes payables on behalf of clients 1.435.541 1.366.262

23.531.001 24.344.098

() Provisions for litigation and arbitration

31.12.2014 31.12.2013

€ €
1 January 265.000 344.600
Reversal for the year (216.000) (55.316)
Provision for the year 28.000 41.400
Payments for the year - (65.684)

31 December 77.000 265.000
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SHARE CAPITAL

31.12.2014 31.12.2013
Number of Number of
shares € shares €
Authorised
(Ordinary shares of €0,85 each) 600.000.0600.000.000 600.000.000 510.000.000

Issued and fully paid

1 January 159.500.000 135.575.000 139.500.000 73860
Issue of shares - -20.000.000 17.000.000
31 December (Ordinary shares of €0,85

each) 159.500.000135.575.000 159.500.000 135.575.000

On ' November 2013, the Bank increased its sharaatdpym €118.575.000 divided into
139.500.000 ordinary shares of nominal value €3&86h to €135.575.000 divided into
159.500.000 ordinary shares of nominal value €8:%5.

The increase of share capital was fully paid ishcikom the parent company Alpha Bank
S.A. amounting to €65.000.000. The difference betwihe issue price and the nominal value
amounted to €48.000.000 was recognized in thenséateof equity at “share premium”

CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL SECURITIES

31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €

Issue of convertible capital securities 66.000 64.000.000
On the i November 2013, the Bank issued 75.294.118 perpeiiavertible capital
securities with no maturity with nominal value &,each which were purchased by the

parent company Alpha Bank S.A.

Convertible capital securities bear a fixed annotrest of 7% which is payable on the 30
September each year.

The Bank may at its sole discretion at all timéscteto cancel an interest payment on a non-
cumulative basis. Cancellation of a coupon payrdees not constitute an event of default of
interest payment, and does not entitle the holwepetition for the insolvency of the Bank.

The Bank has cancelled the payment of intereghfoyear 2014.
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31. CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL SECURITIES (cont.)

32.

The convertible capital securities may be redeeraethe discretion of the Bank subject to
the prior approval of the Central Bank of Cyprus,tleir nominal value including any
accrued interest but excluding any interest paynpeaviously cancelled, at 30 September
2019 or at any subsequent interest payment date.

Mandatory cancellation of interest payment shalilyaphen:

» The Bank fails to comply with the minimum capitatjuirements set by the Central Bank
of Cyprus for credit institutions operating in Cyprin the Directive on the calculation of
the capital requirements and large exposures, asded or replaced, or

= The Bank has insufficient distributable items tdkean interest payment, or

= The Central Bank of Cyprus may require, in its gtikrretion, at any time the Bank to
cancel interest payments.

The convertible capital securities are obligataygverted into ordinary shares of the Bank on
the occurrence of a Contingency event or a Viabditent. The conversion price is constant
and cannot be lower than the nominal value of thek& ordinary shares.

These financial instruments are classified as ggag the Bank does not have a contractual
obligation to repay the holder in cash or othemafiicial asset. The convertible capital
securities are classified as Tier 1 capital for pepose of calculating the capital adequacy
ratio.

RESERVES

The revenue reserve is distributable accordingpéa¢quirements of the Company Law, Cap.
113.

The investments revaluation reserve arose fronrataluation of investments available for
sale. The investments revaluation reserve is mmitiltltable but in case of disposal of
revalued investments, any balance of the surplugwaluation which belongs to the disposed
investments which is included in the investmentgsligation reserve, is transferred to the
revenue reserve.
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RESERVES(cont.)

Companies which do not distribute 70% of their jiscdifter tax, as determined by the Special
Defence contribution Law, during the two years raftee end of taxable year that the profits
are reported, it will be considered that they hdigributed this amount as dividend. Special
defence contribution of 20% for the year 2013 arn%hin 2014 and after will be payable on

the deemed dividend distribution at the extent Whiwners (individuals and companies) at
the end of the two year period after the end oaltéex year that the profits are reported, are
taxable Cyprus residents. The amount of deemedhdison of dividends is reduced by any

realised dividend that has already been distribfedhe year during which the profits are

reported. The special defence contribution is fwidhe Company for the account of the

owners.

The above requirements of the Law are not appligié case of the Bank due to the fact that
its owners are not residents in Cyprus for tax pses.

OFF BALANCE SHEET LIABILITIES
31.12.2014 31.12.2013

€ €
Contingent liabilities
Bank guarantees 51.762.632 _61.639.729
Commitments
Letters of credit and letters of guarantees 7.552.248 4.790.820
Undrawn credit facilities 154.258.173 165.304.991

161.810.421 170.095.811

Total off balance sheet liabilities 213.573.053231.735.540

Documentary credits and letters of guarantee avallyscompensated through respective
third party liabilities.

Documentary credits which are in the form of lettef credit relating to imports/exports
commit the Bank to make payments to third partiegpmduction of documents and provided
that the terms of the documentary credit are satisfThe repayment by the customer is due
immediately or within up to six months.

Loan and facility limits that have been approved bat utilized by clients represent a
contractual obligation. These limits are granted & specific time period and may be
cancelled by the Bank at any time by giving noticéhe customer.

The exposure of the Bank to credit risk is disalosenote 38 of the financial statements.
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33. OFF BALANCE SHEET LIABILITIES (cont.)

Financial
Services Buildings & Tourism
Sector Manufacturing Construction Trading industry Other Individual Total
31.12.2014 € € € € € € € €
Exposure to credit risk relating to
off balance sheet items:
Letters of credit and letters of guarantees 4.285.1 1.558.216 16.999.137 27.930.957 610.010 7.034.850 916.602  59.314.880

Undrawn credit facilities
9.255.503 15.994.681 34.288.355 12.538.863 4.668.543 30.218.125 47.294.103 154.258.173

Total 13.520.611 17.552.897 51.287.492 40.469.820  5.278.553  37.252.975 48.210.705 213533.

31.12.2013

Exposure to credit risk relating to
off balance sheet items:

Letters of credit and letters of guarantees 501.105 743.674 23.817.257 25.653.942 1.799.099 11.663.352 2.252.120 66.480.54

Undrawn credit facilities 1.678.968 16.854.213  37.606.362 13.104.076 2.450.063 44.054.228 49.557.081 165.304.991

Total 2.180.073 17.597.887 61.423.619 38.758.018  4.249.162 55.717.580 51.809.201 2315485.
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TRANSFERS / COMMITMENTS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Bank for the years 2014 and 2013 did not haydiaancial asset commitments.

OTHER CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Lease commitments
The minimum future commitments of leases per dasé agreements that expire at different

dates up to 2032 are as follows:

31.12.2014 31.12.2013

€ €
Within one year 1.471.356 1.089.641
Between one to five years 4.472.726 3.360.048
More than five years 4.525.005 2.601.334

10.469.087 7.051.023

Litigation

As at 31 December 2014, there were pending libgatagainst the Bank in connection with
its activities. Based on legal advice, the BoardDafectors proceeded to a provision for
litigation matters (note 29) or to a provision farpairment of doubtful debts for some of
these cases in the financial statements, whesekpected that the Bank will suffer loss.

Apart from the above there are no pending litigagiaclaims or assessments against the Bank
or court decisions where the outcome of which wdwdde amaterial effecion the financial
statements apart from those already provided for.

Tax issues

The Bank has been tax reviewed up until 2007 andursently in the process of being
reviewed for the years 2008-2011. As the tax revemmld potentially not recognize the
productivity of certain expenses, it is likely tHatther tax could be imposed regarding those
years not reviewed by the tax authorities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Bank's commitmentscapital expenditure for which no
provision has been made in the financial statemamisunted to €879.932 (2013: €973.944)
and represents additional work performed for the Riead Office buildings and for the cost
of refurbishment of new branches.
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37. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,csh and cash equivalents includes the

following:
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
Note € €
Cash and deposits 15 74.864.630 42.507.963
Loans and advances to financial institutions 16 220.435.526 232.180.826
Deposits from financial institutions (40.082.558) (16.865.585)

255.217.598 257.823.204
38. RISK MANAGEMENT

Alpha Bank Cyprus Limited, is adhering to the psimns of Basel lll, as these are adopted
by the European Directives, and the Central BahliCyprus Directive on Corporate
Governance. The Bank being a member of Alpha Bamgkip, operates within the framework
and procedures of risk management of the Alpha Eznakip.

The structure of the Risk Management function iseblaon the Risk Management Policy
framework that Alpha Bank Group has developedant at:

¢ Compliance with the instructions of the supervisoogies with regards to setting a policy
for the acceptance, follow up and management afyeisk.

¢ Improvement in the handling of the action takepr@vent and minimize risks.

o Effective capital planning in order to cover theks undertaken.

Within the above framework, the Group has estabtisRolicy manuals and Procedures in
specific areas relating to risk management such as:

credit risk

loan impairment,

market risk,

management of assets — liabilities,
operational risk,

regulatory compliance, and

capital management
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

The above policies are specific and are incorpdrat® the procedures of the Bank, taking
into account the requirements of the supervisagéwork.

The Board of Directors and the Risk Management Citeenare responsible for the risk
assessment and the coordination of activities reduior their management, through the
supervision of the strategy and the procedureskfnanagement.

The Bank has an independent Risk Management Urigse main responsibility is to
implement effective methods of recognizing, quaimi and managing the risks that the
Bank undertakes.

The Unit has the following departments:
o Credit Risk

o Market Risk and Liquidity Risk

o Operational Risk

Credit Risk

Credit Risk refers to the potential risk that thenB may face derived from the inability of
creditors or contracting parties to promptly méetit repayment obligations or to fully repay
their obligations as per terms of contractual ageds.

The Bank reduces credit risk with the diversifioatiof the lending portfolio to different
sectors of the economy and categories of clietitss noted that the diversification between
different sectors of the economy is limited du¢hte small size and the special characteristics
of the Cyprus economy. Diversification betweeraldnt categories of clients is achieved to
the extent possible following the setting of uppesdit limits to individuals and groups.
Through compliance with the internal procedureshaf Bank and through the adoption of
systems for the approval and control of the lodhs, losses arising from credit risk are
minimized to the greatest extent possible.

The procedures followed include among others, assa&st of customers’ repayment ability,
and describe the stages that have to be followad the preparation and submission of the
customer’s request to the appropriate approval ceiyh to the final approval and
implementation. Included in the procedures is tlamitoring of customers accounts and the
transactional behavior following the disbursemdihie procedures are constantly reviewed in
order to enhance standardization, measurement andgament of credit risk .

Facilities are authorized by Committees, the lesklwhom, is subject to amount of
exposure, type, rating of customer, product anthashl. The credit policy of the Bank is in
line with the Alpha Bank Group policy and the riegions of the Central Bank of Cyprus.
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit risk (cont.)

Measuring credit risk and internal ratings

Important tools that are being used for the logmrayal process as well as for the credit quality
classification of the loan portfolio, are the ratiof the credit worthiness of the borrower and the
mortgaged collaterals that generate income.

The purpose of the credit rating system is to @s#les probability of non-performance by
creditors to fulfill their obligations towards AlpBank Group.

The Bank uses statistical models and credit evialuabdols for businesses, as these are used
within Alpha Bank Group.

The rating systems used by the Group and the Bamkhe Alpha Bank Rating System
(ABRS) and Moody’s Risk Advisor (MRA) which incorpaie various models (specimens) of
credit risk rating.

All existing and potential credit customers of tAank and the companies of Alpha Bank
Group are assessed based on the suitable craéait naddel and within the agreed timeframe.

The statistical confirmation of credit risk ratimgodels is reviewed constantly in order to
ensure the maximum possible predictive capacityadoordance with international best
practices.

To assess the likelihood of default by the creditof the Bank and the companies of the
Group, the credit risk rating models evaluate &seavf parameters, which can be grouped as
follows:

¢ Financial capabilities of the borrower (liquiditydicators, indebtedness etc).

¢ Comparative position of the borrower in the widevieonment in which they operate and
mainly in comparison to competing businesses irséme sector.

e Transactional behaviour of the creditor with theo@r and other third parties (debts in
arrears, adverse information etc.).

e Qualitative characteristics of the creditor (intggrand continuity of management,
suitability of property, plant and equipment etc).
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Credit risk (cont.)
Debtors rating

Debtors are rated at the following credit riskmgs:
AA, A+, A, A-, BB+, BB, BB-, B, B-, CC+, CC, CC-, C,, DO, DE

For the purposes of completing the table «Assetlitpuaf Neither Past Due Nor Impaired
Loans and Advances to Customers », at the “Highting the rates AA, A+, A, A- and BB+
apply, at the “Satisfactory” rating the rates BEB-, B, B-, CC+, CC apply and at the
“unrated and under surveillance” (higher risk) @@e lower apply.

The Bank has also developed statistical models d8ess applications which it has
incorporated into its approval procedures.

An important mean of mitigating the credit riskh®e use of collateral from creditors.

By collateral it is implied, assets of any natareights, which are available to Alpha Bank
Group, either from the creditors or from third mers, to be used as additional sources of
liquidity against debts.

Furthermore, the Bank shall ensure that it contisiyomonitors the delays in non-performing
loans and takes the measures to contain them.vBee® procedures are updated on a
regular basis geared towards flexibility and effeaiess with the aim of limiting credit risk.

Impairments:
Impairment policy

The Bank reviews loans and advances to customenslier to assess whether there is a need for
impairment which is recognized in comprehensive@ine. The Bank assesses whether there is
objective evidence of impairment in order to pratedth customers’ individual assessment for
impairment. The loan portfolio is assessed orviddal and collective basis.

Individual assessment for impairment

The Bank has defined as ‘significant for individwsessment’ customers loans that are
managed by the Wholesale Banking sector with taslin excess of €300 thousands, related
to associated companies, and related to conneeebis with facilities over €1 mil. In
addition, for Retail Banking customers it has definas ‘significant for individual
assessment’ loans to customers with facilities &lemil. and connected with them persons
with facilities over €1 mil.
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit risk (cont.)
Individual assessment for impairment(cont.)
The assessment for impairment is performed on eejliabasis, as follows:

The Bank assesses whether objective evidence dividmal assessment for impairment exists.
The process for identifying loans for impairmendagstimating their impairment provision
consists of the following steps:

¢ Identification of loans which will be individuallgssessed and for which events exist which
constitute objective evidence that an impairmess loas occurred.

¢ Impairment calculation on an individual basis foe toans identified in the previous step, as
the difference between the recoverable amountt@darrying amount of the loan.

e Loans where no provision was made on the indivichasis, will be examined under
collective impairment, based on similar credit rislaracteristics.

Significant loans are assessed on an individuasbf®ne of the following trigger events
exists:

Exposures exhibiting arrears / past due over 9@ day

Rating of borrower CC- or worse

Non performing facility

Restructured customers with worse rating per thegry systems of the Bank

Significant difficulty of the borrower to repay ttiparties obligations

Significant deterioration of the financial positiand performance of the borrower

Adverse developments in borrowers’ industry oukloo

Interventions and actions by regulatory bodiesllacghorities against the borrower

Breach of contractual or credit terms and condgion

Adverse changes in the shareholders’ structurdd@mtanagement of the company or

serious management issues/problems

Occurrence of unforeseen, extreme events

e Permanent arrears and / or other problems to anatieenber of the group of the
borrower

e Customers impaired during the previous assesstioemhom the above criteria do not

apply
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit risk (cont.)
Collective assessment for impairment

For collective assessment for impairment purpobkesfallowing categories for Wholesale
and Retail customers are examined:

¢ Loans with facilities less than those defined dadp&ndividually significant”.

e Loans which are individually significant and aret sabject to losses, during individual
assessment for impairments, are also collectivedgssed once they are grouped based on
similar credit risk characteristics

e Loans for which there are no triggers for impairinemd consequently are not
individually assessed, are categorized based atasienedit risk characteristics.

Identifying specific loans with objective evidenckimpairment loss to be recognized may
lead to a delay in recognition of loan impairmemwljch has already incurred. In this context,
in accordance with IAS 39, it is appropriate toogtize impairment loss for those losses that
have been «incurred but not reported» (IBNR).

The identification of loans to be impaired and #ssessment of impairment includes the
following steps:

e Recognition of loans to be collectively assessed

e Calculation of impairment on a collective basistloé loans identified in the preceding
step

o Identification of loans to be collectively assesded losses incurred but not reported
(HIBNRH)

For the provisions on collective assessment, taed@re grouped based on similar credit risk
characteristics. The impairment amount is calcdl&sed on the credit risk characteristics of
each group and the portfolio to which the borrowerloan belongs to. Simultaneously,
conditions/events which may potentially cause lsssed which are considered for
impairment are also examined. Statistical method€mpirical assessment are used in
determining provisions.

Provisions are collectively calculated on examoratf the following conditions depending
on the sector to which they belong:

Wholesale Banking Sector

e Size of the client
e Economic activity.
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit risk (cont.)
Wholesale Banking Sectofcont.)

e Rank — Performing/Restructured/ Arrears.
e Coverage ratio based on LTV ratio.

Retail Banking Sector

¢ Nature of facility
e Rank — Performing/Restructured/ Arrears.

The assessment of the Wholesale Banking sectarfisrmed on a customer basis and for the
Retail Banking sector on an accounts basis.

To determine the amount of the required provisiahg, Bank needs to assess the amount and
timing of future cash flows. Such assessments ased on assumptions on a number of
factors. The assumptions include future changésarvalue of the assets/recoverable amount
as well as the timeframe for liquidity purposese Malues of the assets are adjusted based on
residential property index provided by the CenBahk of Cyprus so as to value them at
market value. The timeframe for the recoverabitifycollateral has been defined at three
years at a considerably more conservative valueendiscounted to net present value.

Any changes to assumptions or differences betwssimaptions which were made and actual
differences could lead to significant changes &é&mount of the required provisions.

In January 2015, the Swiss National Bank abolighedipper limit rate between the Euro and
the Swiss Franc and as a consequence the Swissncyrwas significantly appreciated
against the Euro. The appreciation of the exchaatgeis expected to have an adverse impact
on the recoverability of loans and advances whiete issued on that currency.

The Bank, under the impairment process of loadsaalvances, will assess the impact of the
above change of the exchange rate and determirexieeted cash flows of the relevant
portfolio

Restructuring
The maintenance of a healthy loan portfolio imples continuous monitoring and

assessment of its clients, in order to pre-emigtieentify future liquidity problems which
might impact the repayment of obligations towaldsBank and the Alpha Bank Group.



79
ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit risk (cont.)
Restructuring (cont.)

The credit tools commonly used by the Bank andGheup to manage liquidity problems
faced by its clients in the repayment of their destthe restructuring of their finances by
renegotiating the original terms of the loan agrem

Regulation EU no. 575/2013 established the framkvior prudential requirements on the
management by credit institutions of loans arreacsnon-performing loans.

Furthermore, under European Commission Regulatldre&15/227 of 9 January 2015 and
the technical standards implementation of the EemoBanking Authority, the Bank and the
Group undertake the resulting obligations in relatio restructured loans.

The restructuring of debtors is proposed for coafpex and viable borrowers who are
experiencing financial difficulties on the conditithat the restructuring will be effective and
viable in the long term, taking into consideratithre causes which resulted in financial
difficulties as well as the repayment capabilityhe borrower

Furthermore, the Bank on 31.12.2014 reassessegethaeter of restructured loans for all its
sectors under European Commission Regulation @15/227 of 9 January 2015 and the
technical standards implementation of the Euroggemking Authority and incorporated the
relevant definitions into its Credit Risk Policy.

Henceforth, based on the above conditions the dpwednt, quality and effectiveness of
these loans shall be monitored. The above reassassenders the comparative depiction of
restructured loans for 31.12.2014 and 31.12.20h3feasible.

DEFINITIONS:
The following definitions apply for the purposeaafmpleting the tables that follow:

Past Due Loans
A financial asset is past due when the counterjsadigbt is past due for over a day

Non Performing Exposures

A loan is considered non-performing if one of tbkdwing conditions applies:
* Legal proceedings have commenced.

* It is in arrears over 90 days due
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit risk (cont.)
Non Performing Exposures(cont.)

» ltis considered as Unlikely to pay (as definecgl

e ltis considered impaired

» Characterized as forborne non-performing loan woetance with the provisions
of the European Commission Regulation EU 2015/229 @anuary 2015 on the
amendment of the Commission Implementing RegulaionNo 680/2014 of 16
April 2014 laying down implementing technical stards with regard to
supervisory reporting of institutions accordingRegulation EU No 575/2013 of
the European Parliament and of the Council.

Performing Exposures
For the purposes of client monitoring, a loan &kad as performing if:

e itisin arrears less than 90 days,

» is not subject to legal proceedings,

» the creditor does not display signs of inabilityépay its obligations,
e itis not impaired,

e contamination effect does not apply,

* is a forborne performing loan in accordance with phovisions of the European
Commission Regulation (EU) 2015/227 of 9 January526n the amendment of
the Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No @804

 Forborne Loans

Loans with tolerating measures are defined as ledrish include concessions towards the
debtor who is facing or is about to face difficedtiin fulfilling its obligations.

* Unlikely to pay loans

Loans with ‘unlikely to pay’ indications are defth@s loans which have been assessed as
unlikely to be repaid by the client without thquidation of their collateral, regardless of the
existence of any arrears or the number of daysdueest
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit risk (cont.)
Impaired Loans
Impaired loans are those loans defined as follows:

e Loans for which an impairment amount has been Gkd under the individual
assessment method,

e Loans in arrears over 90 days or under legal pabhoge, which have been impaired on a
collective basis,

o The loans of the Retail portfolio that have beerrkad as “non-performing or forborne
non performing” regardless of the number of dayarrears.

¢ Loans marked as «Unlikely to pay» and are notiieaas over 90 days.

Wholesale and Retail Banking credit facilities

Wholesale Banking credit facilities are includedeach of the following categories subject to
the characteristics of the credit facility of thHaligor, as shown in the table below:

Portfolio Characteristics

Groups with turnover > €2,5 mil. or credi

Wholesale ChipiEE facility > €1 mil.
Banking
Customers
Groups with turnover between €0,5 mil. axd
SME €2,5 mil. or credit facility between €150 tt s.
and €1 mil.

Credit facilities granted to customers beyond tharacteristics shown above fall under the
Retail Banking sector
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Credit risk (cont.)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CREDIT RISK

31.12.2014
Exposure Exposure
before Net exposure  before
impairment  Impairment to credit risk impairment
€ € € €

A. Credit risk exposure relating to
on balance sheet items
Balances with Central Banks 63.450.339 - 63.450.339 22.493.838
Balances with financial institutions 220.435.526 - 220.435.526 232.180.826
Loans and advances to customers 3.438.924.9792.285.3612.646.639.6104.165.755.445
Derivative financial assets 1.279.360 - 1.279.360 2.469.601
Available for sale securities:
- Available for sale (government
bonds) 319.310.043 - 319.310.043 15.449.950
- Available for sale (other) 22.265.132 - 22.265.132 1.650.571

82

31.12.2013

Net exposure
Impairment  to credit risk
€ €

- 22.493.838
- 232.180.826
698.693.899 3.467.061.546
- 2.469.601

- 15.449.950
- 1.650.571

Total amount of on balance sheet
items exposed to credit risk (a)  4.065.665.371 792.285.3613.273.380.0104.440.000.231
Other on balance sheet items not
exposed to credit risk 54.391.088 - 54.391.088 62.313.891

698.693.899 3.741.306.332

- 62.313.891

Total assets 4.120.056.459 792.285.3613.327.771.0984.502.314.122

698.693.899 3.803.620.223

B. Credit risk exposure relating to

off balance sheet items:

Letters of guarantee, letters of credit

and other guarantees 59.314.880 - 59.314.880 66.430.549
Undrawn loan agreements and credit

limits that cannot be recalled

(committed) 154.258.173 - 154.258.173 165.304.991

- 66.430.549

- 165.304.991

Total amount of off balance sheet
items exposed to credit risk (b) 213.573.053 - 213.573.053 231.735.540

- 231.735.540

Total credit risk exposure (a+b)  4.279.238.424 792.285.3613.486.953.0634.671.735.771

698.693.899 3.973.041.872

The maximum credit risk to which the Bank is expbsedepicted in the column “Net exposure to crasi’.
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit Risk (cont.)

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS BY ASSET QUALITY (i mpaired or not impaired — impairment allowance —vale of collateral)

31.12.2014
Non impaired Impaired Accumulated impairment
loans and advances loans and advances allowance
Neither past Past due Neither past Past due
due nor but not Individually  Collectively Total gross Individually due nor but not Individually
impaired impaired assessed assessed amount assessed impaired impaired assessed
€ € € € € € € € €
Retail lending
Mortgage 582.882.796 123.889.856 63.051.678 853.389.795 1.623.214.125 24.214.058 315.955.971 1.283.044.096 1.287.672.962
Consumer 57.439.507 8.859.356  36.258.343 101.006.996 203.564.202 20.400.496 37.786.246 145.377.460 90.531.608
Credit cards 9.303.067 176.827 668.090 4.828.395 14.976.379 180.495 1.153.379  13.642.505 1.273.395
Small Business Loans 17.824.670 3.883.872 2.825.343  26.387.849 50.921.734 1.081.503 7.450.092  42.390.139  34.847.947

667.450.040 136.809.911 102.803.454 985.613.035 1.892.676.440 45.876.552 362.345.688 1.484.454.200 1.414.325.912

Corporate lending

Large 608.696.355 121.922.680 588.474.974 101.177.065 1.420.271.074 268.806.805 74.227.120 1.077.237.1491.126.976.112

SME's 21.457.271 4.407.211 80.111.474 19.226.458 125.202.414  35.292.322 5.704.160  84.205.932  94.045.459
630.153.626 126.329.891 668.586.448 120.403.523 1.545.473.488 304.099.127  79.931.280 1.161.443.081 1.221.021.571

Public sector 775.032 11 - - 775.043 - 32.714 742.329 385.956

Total 1.298.378.698 263.139.813 771.389.902 1.106.016.558 3.438.924.971 349.975.679 442.309.682 2.646.639.610 2.635.733.439

An amount of €114.143.373 that is included in awglated impairment allowance under “Collectivelgessed” relates to IBNR provisions. An amount &C€840.663 is included in
impaired loans and advances relating to restredtimans past due < 90 days.
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit Risk (cont.)

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS BY ASSET QUALITY (i mpaired or not impaired — impairment allowance —vaue of collateral) (cont.)

31.12.2013
Non impaired Impaired Accumulated impairment
loans and advances loans and advances allowance
Neither past Past due Neither past Past due
due nor but not Individually ~ Collectively Total gross Individually due nor but not Individually
impaired impaired assessed assessed amount assessed impaired impaired assessed
€ € € € € € € € €
Retail lending
Mortgage 681.383.210 58.714.031 - 964.757.467 1.704.854.708 - 326.849.812 1.378.004.896 1.407.796.987
Consumer 62.537.033 12.837.178 - 136.615.603 211.989.814 - 53.674.997 158.314.817 98.604.320
Credit cards 9.848.972 534.947 - 5.032.624  15.416.543 - 1.991.051  13.425.492 1.016.980
Small Business Loans 21.608.721 4.953.791 - 25.453.8900 52.016.402 - 0.268.684 42.747.718  35.739.053
775.377.936  77.039.947 - 1.131.859.584 1.984.277.467 - 391.784.544 1.592.492.923 1.543.157.340

Corporate lending
Large 1.181.540.348 127.508.075 660.726.657 87.853.099 2.057.628.179 262.197.144 8.253.750 1.787.177.285 1.797.700.476
SME’s 29.225.322 12.084.505 79.669.199 1.755.578 122.734.604 36.060.837 391.812  86.281.955 98.035.960

1.210.765.670 139.592.580 740.395.856 89.608.677 2.180.362.783 298.257.981 8.645.562 1.873.459.240 1.895.736.436
Public sector 1.115.195 - - - 1.115.195 - 5.812 1.109.383 750.742
Total 1.987.258.801 216.632.527 740.395.856 1.221.468.261 4.165.755.445 298.257.981 400.435.918 3.467.061.546 3.439.644.518
An amount of €65.059.144 that is included in acglated impairment allowance under “Collectivelyessed” relates to IBNR provisions. An amount of¥868.477 is included in

impaired loans and advances relating to restredtlans past due < 90 days.
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Credit risk (cont.)

ANALYSIS OF NEITHER PAST DUE NOR IMPAIRED LOANS AND ADVANCES TO

CUSTOMERS

Retail lending
Mortgage

Consumer

Credit cards

Small Business Loans

Corporate lending
Large
SME’s

Public sector

Total

Retail lending
Mortgage

Consumer

Credit cards

Small Business Loans

Corporate lending
Large
SME’s

Public sector

Total

31.12.2014
Total neither
Watch list past due nor Value of
Strong Satisfactory (higher risk) impaired collateral
€ € € € €
- 582.882.796 - 582.882.796 510.996.502
- 57.439.507 - 57.439.507 29.567.898
- 9.303.067 - 9.303.067 941.424
- 17.824.670 _ - 17.824.670 _ 12.827.353
- 667.304.231 _ - 667.450.040 554.333.177
4.891.505 369.039.275  234.765.574 608.696.35545.145.113
451.464 10.999.337 10.006.471 21.457.271 _20.439.952
5.342.969 380.038.612 244.772.045 630.153.626 565.585.065
- 775.032 - 775.032 385.956
5.342.969 1.048.117.875 244.917.854 1.298.378.698 1.120.304.198
31.12.2013
Total neither
Watch list past due nor Value of
Strong Satisfactory (higher risk) impaired collateral
€ € € € €

- 681.383.210 - 681.383.210 602.867.649
- 62.537.033 - 62.537.033 30.256.941
- 9.848.972 - 9.848.972 676.644
- 21.608.721 - 21.608.721 _ 14.488.401
- 775.377.936 - 775.377.936 _ 648.289.635
4.177.346 186.350.104  991.012.898  1.181.540.3%806.971.538
1.062.553 15.961.806  12.200.963 29.225.322  27.069.120
5.239.899 202.311.910 1.003.213.861 1.210.765.670 1.134.040.658
- 383.527 731.668 1.115.195 750.742
5.239.899 978.073.373 1.003.945.529 1.987.258.801 1.783.081.035
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit risk (cont.)

AGEING ANALYSIS OF PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED LOANS AND ADVANCES TO
CUSTOMERS BY PRODUCT LINE

31.12.2014
Retail Lending Corporate Lending Total past
Small due but not
Business impaired
Mortgage Consumer  Credit cards Loans Large SME'’s
€ € € € € € €
1- 30 days 43.599.761 6.137.594 85.375 1.916.87B.372.687 1.711.989 74.826.279
31 - 60 days 13.140.482 1.887.235 55.822  1.108.422.671.969 724.438 61.588.368
61 - 90 days 67.149.613 834.527 35.630 858.577 523%5 1.970.784 94.301.506
91 - 180 days - - - - 602 - 602
181 - 360 days - - - - 32.423.058 - 32.423.058
> 360 days - - - - - - -
Total 123.889.856 8.859.356 176.827 3.883.872 121.922.691  4.407.211 263.139.813
Value of
collateral 105.804.521 3.582.785 17.094 3.193.267 115.256.372  3.741.733  231.595.772
31.12.2013
Retail Lending Corporate Lending  Total past
Small due but not
Business impaired
Mortgage  Consumer  Credit cards Loans Large SME'’s
€ € € € € € €
1 - 30 days 44.042.538 7.032.812 284.001  2.349.676 21.474.601 3.292.239 4783867
31 - 60 days 10.097.478 3.551.870 121.689  1.468.415  1.385.922 1.085.317 710791
61 - 90 days 4.574.016 2.250.850 129.257  1.135.699.850.760 763.225 14.703.807
91 - 180 days - 597 - - 8.512.113 811.416 9.324.126
181 - 360 days - 792 - - 41.502.644 2.253.794 AB7D
> 360 days - 257 - - 48.782.034  3.878.515 52.660.806
Total 58.714.032 12.837.178 534.947 4.953.790 127.508.074 12.084.506 216.632.527
Value of

collateral 51.557.477 _5.803.031 24,996 4.090.386 123.261.965 11.281.186  196.019.041
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Credit risk (cont.)

AGEING ANALYSIS OF IMPAIRED LOANS AND ADVANCES TO C USTOMERS BY
PRODUCT LINE

31.12.2014
Retail Lending Corporate Lending
Small
Business Total
Mortgage Consumer  Credit cards Loans Large SME'’s Impaired
€ € € € € € €
Without arrears 154.093.189 12.934.244 285.846 31023 121.441.724 4.933.883 295.481.913
1 - 30 days 13.460.835 2.484.906 16.114  1.172.6324511733 60.412 18.646.632
31 - 60 days 5.283.763 948.180 15.268 297.064 6680 - 13.174.883
61 - 90 days 15.372.858 884.118 49.281 482.294 43585 451.037 29.683.283
91 - 180 days 106.276.440 3.279.024 64.501 733.974.444.024 3.151.049 117.949.015
181 - 360 days 46.802.662 19.567.426  2.207.479 33063 94.443.244 11.969.136 181.023.902
> 360 days 287.348.373 43.217.457 1.548.136 11.120.469160.377.917 39.692.492  543.304.844
Net value of
impaired loans
and advances 628.638.120 83.315.355 4.186.625 21.633.418 401.232.945 60.258.009 1.199.264.472

Value of collateral 670.871.938 57.380.925 314.877 18.827.327 466.574.627 69.863.774 1.283.833.468
31.12.2013
Retail Lending Corporate Lending
Small
Business Total
Mortgage Consumer  Credit cards Loans Large SME'’s Impaired
€ € € € € € €
Without arrears 381.946.262 18.701.534 852  1.2%4.2B1.989.674 1.814.423 635.707.257
1 - 30 days 8.116.774 1.922.642 - 464.676 31.427.49 1.572.877 43.504.461
31 - 60 days 9.446.823 1.041.391 - 615.723  4.683.97 323.816 16.111.732
61 - 90 days 8.716.919 973.214 - 20.546  4.003.608 - 13.714.287
91 - 180 days 9.086.366 5.038.009 199.853  1.837.886354.326 923.223 21.439.663
181 - 360 days 3.042.457 5.144919 2.115.015 58070. 26.549.389 3.732.114 43.184.431
> 360 days 268.378.156 56.571.744 951.539 10.853.844181.034.100 36.778.148 554.567.531
Net value of

impaired loans
and advances

Value of collateral 753.371.862 62.544.348

688.733.757 89.393.453 _3.267.259 17.647.724 484.042.568 45.144.601 1.328.229.362

315.340 17.160.266 567.466.973 59.685.654 1.460.544.443
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Credit Risk (cont.)
RECONCILIATION OF IMPAIRED LOANS AND ADVANCES BY L OAN CATEGORY

31.12.2014
Retail Lending Corporate Lending Total
Mortgages Consumer Credit cards Small Large SMEs
business businesses businesses
loans

€ € € € € € €
Balance 01.01.2014 964.757.467 136.615.603 5.032.624 25.453.890 798758 81.424.777 1.961.864.117
Value of loans categorized as impaired within
the period 267.181.745 39.662.608 1.647.922 8.920.092 137.745.225 23.271.943 478.429.535
Value of loans taken off from impaired
category (241.580.657) (31.334.813) (870.499) (4.790.016) (114.774.852) (4.015.626) (397.366.463)
Proceeds from impaired loans (20.332.860) (6.299.75 - (933.220) (11.915.356) (1.697.679) (41.177)874
Write off of impaired loans and
advances (84.953.053) (1.758.895) (138.312) (233.567) (5.448.603) (237.750) (92.770.180)
Disposal of impaired loans and
advances - - - - (72.914.918) - (72.914.918)
Exchange differences and other movement 31.368.831 379.593 (175.250) 796.014 8.380.788 592.267 4123%0.
Balance 31.12.2014 916.441.473 137.265.337 5.496.485 29.213.193 62988 99.337.932 1.877.406.460
Accumulated impairment provision 287.803.353 53.9892 1.309.860 7.579.775 288.419.095 39.079.923 1871388

Net value of impaired loans and
advances 628.638.120 83.315.355 4.186.625 21.633.418  401.232.945 60.258.009 1.199.264.472
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Credit risk (cont.)

LOAN-TO-VALUE RATIO (LTV) OF MORTGAGE LENDING

< 50%

50% - 70%
71% - 80%
81% - 90%
91% - 100%
101% - 120%
121% - 150%
> 150%

Total exposure

89

31.12.2014 31.12.2013
Mortgage Loans
€ €
189.124.387 188.498.056
191.775.512 238.092.210
133.103.200 157.572.407
144.652.980 185.430.390
182.891.398 227.721.074
343.727.899 382.100.782
267.576.783 189.086.124
170.361.966 136.353.665

1.623.214.125

1.704.854.708

Average LTV (%) 77.70% 75,32%
BREAKDOWN OF COLLATERAL AND GUARANTEES
31.12.2014
Value of collateral received
Real estate  Financial
collateral collateral Other collateral Total
€ € € €
Retail Lending 1.354.144.989 7.196.646 52.984.277 1.414.325.912
Corporate Lending 1.029.771.637 14.144.804 177.105.130 1.221.021.571
Public sector - 385.956 - 385.956
Total 2.383.916.626 21.727.406 230.089.407 2.635.733.439
31.12.2013
Value of collateral received
Real estate  Financial
collateral collateral Other collateral Total
€ € € €

Retail Lending 1.488.104.447 8.480.837 46.572.056 1.543.157.340
Corporate Lending 1.312.969.542 40.018.179 542.748.715 1.895.736.436
Public sector - 750.742 - 750.742
Total 2.801.073.989 49.249.758 589.320.771 3.439.644.518

The Bank has not received any collaterals it mdly@ere-assign in case of non existence of

liability breach by the debtor.
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31.12.2014
Balance Sheet balances Disposals
Value of Accumulated Carrying amount
collaterals impairment of collaterals Net
repossessed Of which in allowance Of which in repossessed Net disposal gain/(loss) on
31.12.2014 2014 31.12.2014 2014 31.12.2014 Value disposal
€ € € € € € €
Real Estate 559.068 - - - 559.068 - -
31.12.2013
Balance Sheet balances Disposals
Value of Accumulated Carrying amount
collaterals impairment of collaterals Net
repossessed Of which in allowance Of which in repossessed Net disposal gain/(loss) on
31.12.2014 2014 31.12.2014 2014 31.12.2014 Value disposal
€ € € € € € €
Real Estate 559.068 - - - 559.068 - -
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit Risk (cont.)

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, IMPAIRED LOANS, IM PAIRMENT ALLOWANCE BY PRODUCT LINE, INDUSTRY AND
GEOGRAPHICAL REGION
31.12.2014
Cyprus Greece ef of Europe Other countries
Impaired Accumulated Gross Impaired Accumulated Gross Impaired Accumulated Gross Impaired Accumulated
Gross amount impairment impairment impairment impairment
amount amount amount amount amount amount amount
allowance allowance allowance allowance
€ € € € € € € € € € € €
Retail Lending 812.550.058 433.385.962 134.297.488 2.388.375 29a0. 488.616 992.617.020 614.535.892 256.668.187 128387 38.394.341 16.767.949
Mortgage 556.354.178 278.197.866 69.941.704 2.006.337 1.830.7 407.007 984.341.958 601.988.885 254.674.834 180652 34.423.957 15.146.484
Consumer 191.241.373 121.853.796 54.542.448 352.428 264.627 0.468 7.806.789 11.202.965 1.948.997 4.163.612 3Dg2 1.614.834
Credit cards 14.241.912 4.853.259 1.283.206 29.610 4.904 1.146 5.0868 617.843 44.356 439.769 20.479 5.166
Small Business
Loans 50.712.595 28.481.041 8.530.130 - - 203.185 726.19 - 5.954 5.953 1.465
Corporate Lending 1.489.447.044 788.146.903 383.750.544 1.041.950 7842. 217.237 391 121 1 54.984.103 213 62.625
Financial institutions 17.126.686 5.111.696 3.167.842 - - - - - 142 - -
Manufacturing 53.259.012 29.042.358 15.926.201 25 - 2 2 - 21087 1 -
Real Estate
Development 215.986.038 69.118.943 37.747.502 - - - - - 149 - -
Construction 878.765.672 543.381.688 255.406.197 842.784 842.734 200.642 - - - 2.079.854 212 62.625
Wholesale and retail
trade 112.635.442 68.466.614 32.551.241 - - 304 119 - 7981886 - -
Transportation 10.695.409 2.171.322 1.568.857 - - 73 - - - - -
Tourism 117.790.789 32.871.472 13.207.619 - - - - - - - -
Services 81.774.714 37.154.814 24.072.900 199.141 - 16.595 - - 1.012 - -
Other sectors 1.413.282 827.996 102.185 - - - 12 - 1 - - -
Public sector 775.043 - 32.714 - - - - - - - - -
Total 2.302.772.145 1.221.532.865 518.080.746 3.430.324 9432028 705.853 992.617.412 614.536.013 256.668.188 140.105.090 38.394.554 16.830.574

Note.:Included in the accumulated impairment allowaneel@sses incurred but not reported (IBNR). IBNRa&rns provisions for non-impaired loans and adeanc
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit Risk (cont.)

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, IM PAIRMENT ALLOWANCE BY PRODUCT LINE, INDUSTRY AND

GEOGRAPHICAL REGION (cont.)

IMPAIRED LOANS,

31.12.2013
Cyprus Greece Rest of Europe Othsountries
Impaired Accumulated Gross Impaired Accumulated Impaired Accumulated Gross Impaired Accumulated
Gross amount impairment impairment Gross amount impairment impairment
amount amount amount amount amount amount
allowance allowance allowance allowance
€ € € € € € € € € € € €
Retail Lending 829.537.220 425.767.729 132.000.119 2.465.053 828.2 225.853 1.060.296.970 671.794.222 246.749.098 91297 33.469.362 12.809.474
Mortgage 564.111.489 270.141.599 70.223.218 1.754.224 785.57  198.061 1.050.919.441 663.752.694 244.508.054 o%68 30.097.601 11.920.479
Consumer 198.835.784 125.321.662 50.584.870 688.769 58.496  26.317 8.887.191 7.885.821 2.182.851 3.578.070 9%24 880.959
Credit cards 14.790.083 4.856.008 1.925.069 22.060 4.203 1.475 279.249 155.707 58.193 325.151 16.707 6.313
Small Business
Loans 51.799.864 25.448.460 9.266.962 - - - 211.089 - - 5.449 5.430 1.722
Corporate Lending 2.122.022.092 830.003.536 306.419.319 1.774.165 - 110.525 1.693.454 71 100.357 54.873.072 926 273.342
Financial institutions 5.154.228 2.568.987 589.658 - - - - - - 568 87 61
Manufacturing 47.567.458 23.243.776 13.208.229 22 - - - - - 21.755.308 1 -
Real Estate
Development 454.109.082 77.070.186 27.056.963 - - - - - - 279 150 105
Construction 1.291.075.503 586.358.292 212.723.174 - - - - - - 2.582.034 212 236.709
Wholesale and retail
trade 107.605.651 52.879.082 23.988.742 - - - 81 - - 30.533.219 - -
Transportation 7.635.011 2.259.297 1.127.336 - - - - - - - - -
Tourism 121.230.211 51.089.677 8.175.331 - - - - - - - - -
Services 86.050.922 34.534.234 19.547.314 1.774.143 - 110.525 1.693.373 71 100.357 1.664 476 36.467
Other sectors 1.594.026 5 2.572 - - - - - - - - -
Public sector 1.115.195 - 5.812 - - - - - - - - -
Total 2.952.674.507 1.255.771.265 438.425.250 4.239.218 28.281 336.378 1.061.990.424 671.794.293 246.849.455 546286 33.470.288 13.082.816

Note.:Included in the accumulated impairment allowameelasses incurred but not reported (IBNR).

IBNRa&rns provisions for non-impaired loans and adeanc
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit risk (cont.)

INTEREST INCOME RECOGNISED BY QUALITY OF LOANS AND ADVANCES
AND PRODUCT LINE

31.12.2014

Interest income on Interest income on
non impaired loans impaired loans and Total interest

and advances advances income
€ € €
Retail lending 32.337.544 41.272.933 73.610.477
Corporate lending 54.760.351 32.340.803 87.101.154
Public sector 40.239 - 40.239
Total interest income 87.138.134 73.613.736 160.751.870
31.12.2013

Interest income on Interest income on
non impaired loans impaired loans and Total interest

and advances advances income
€ € €
Retail lending 39.466.606 41.669.911 81.136.517
Corporate lending 60.266.705 33.066.582 93.333.287
Public sector 43.615 - 43.615

Total interest income 99.776.926 74.736.493 174.513.419
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Credit risk (cont.)

ANALYSIS OF RESTRUCTURED LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
Impaired

Total (before impairment)
Individual impairment allowance
Collective impairment allowance
Total net amount

Value of collateral

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
Impaired

Total (before impairment)
Individual impairment allowance
Collective impairment allowance
Total net amount

Value of collateral

31.12.2014

Total amount

Total amount of restructured Restructured
of loans and loans and loans and
advances advances advances
€
€ (%)
1.298.378.698 3425230 26,36
263.139.813 157.310.673 9,785
1.877.406.460 609.194.050 32,45
3.438.924.971 1.108.744.248 32,24
(349.975.679) (29.309.173) 8,37
(442.309.682)221.804.744) 50,15
2.646.639.610 _ 857.630.331 32,40
2.635.733.439 _878.585.034 33,33
31.12.2013
Total amount
Total amount of restructured Restructured
of loans and loans and loans and
advances advances advances
€ € (%)
1.987.258.801 9095(B. 455
216.632.527 4.122.268 01,9
1.961.864.117 833.254.651 42.47
4.165.755.445 927.750.869 22,27
(298.257.981) (45.009.491) 15,09
(400.435.918Y114.439.477) 28,58
3.467.061.546 768.301.901 22,16
3.439.644.518 777.007.144 22,59
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit risk (cont.)

RESTRUCTURED LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS BY
RESTRUCTURED SCHEME

31.12.2014
€

Deferal of interest payment 8.238.050
Reduced payment schedule 25.204.226
Grace period 415.688.012
Extension of repayment schedule 166.109.182
Capitalisation of arrears 113.805.665
Write off fraction of debt 10.908.981

Other 117.676.215
Total net value 857.630.331

RESTRUCTURED LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS BY
PRODUCT LINE

31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €
Retail lending
Mortgage 696.205.787 408.226.777
Consumer 37.497.724 22.638.781
Credit Card 1.338 852
Small Business Loans 7.797.187 2.355.456
741.502.036 433.221.866
Corporate lending
Large 111.197.506 333.141.265
SME's 4.930.789 1.938.770
116.128.295 335.080.035
Total net value 857.630.331 768.301.901
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit risk (cont.)

RESTRUCTURED LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS BY
GEOGRAPHIC REGIONS

31.12.2014
€

Cyprus 416.145.959

Greece 1.010.611

Other European countries 404.513.290

Other countries 35.960.471

Total net value 857.630.331

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Deposits with Loans and Derivative financial Investments Total
the Central advances to instruments available for
Bank of financial sale
Cyprus institutions

2014 € € € €
AA-t0 AAA - 310.805 - 40.973.110 41.283.915
A-to A+ - 2.295.009 - - 2.295.009
Lower thanA- 63.450.339 217.829.712 1.279.360 298.951.4%B1.510.905
Unrated - - - 1.650.571 1.650.571
Not past due nor 63.450.339 220.435.526 1.279.360 341.575.1726.740.400
impaired
2013
AA-10 AAA - 133.034 - - 133.034
A-to A+ - 1.452.847 - - 1.452.847
Lower thanA- 22.493.838 230.594.945 2.469.550 15.449.950 DPBI1283
Unrated - - 51 1.650.571 1.650.622
Not past due nor 22.493.838 232.180.826 2.469.601 17.100.521 274864

impaired
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AVAILABLE IN CENTRAL BANKS — ADVANCES TO CREDIT INS TITUTIONS — DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — BASE D ON

CREDIT RATING

31.12.2014
Cash at Advances to credit Fmanqal _assets Investments
Central R derivative : Total
institutions . available for sale
Bank instruments
Not past due and not impaired 63.450.339 220.485.52 1.279.360 341.575.175 626.740.400
Past due but not impaired - - - - -
Impaired - - - - -
Exposure value before impairment 63.450.339 220.435.526 1.279.360 341.575.175 626.740.400
Less:
Accumulated impairments - - - - -
Net exposure value 63.450.339 220.435.526 1.279.360 341.575.175 626.740.400
31.12.2013
Cash at Advances to credit Fmanqal _assets Investments
Central N derivative . Total
institutions . available for sale
Bank instruments
Not past due and not impaired 22.493.838 232.180.82 2.469.601 17.100.521 274.244.786
Past due but not impaired - - - - -
Impaired - - - - -
Exposure value before impairment 22.493.838 232.180.826 2.469.601 17.100.521 274.244.786
Less:
Accumulated impairments - - - - -
Net exposure value 22.493.838 232.180.826 2.469.601 17.100.521 274.244.786
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit Risk (cont.)

FINANCIAL ASSETS SUBJECT TO CREDIT RISK — Analysis by sector
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31.12.2014
Credit
institutions & Manufacturi Real estate Wholesale Other Individuals and
other anutacturing Construction and retail Public sector Transport Tourism small Total Provisions Total net value

) . and crafts developments sectors .

financial trade businesses

services
Credit risk exposure associated with
balance sheet items
Cash at Central Banks 63.450.339 - - - - - - - - - 63.450.339 - 63.450.339
Loans and advances to financial 220.435.526 - - - - - . . . . 220.435.526 ; 220.435.526
institutions
Loans and advances to customers 17.126.828 74.366.099 215.986.187 881.688.310 144.431.632 775.043 10.695.482 117.790.789 83.388.161 1.892.676.440  3.438.924.971 792.285.361 2.646.639.610
Derivative financial instruments 1.279.360 - - - - - - - - - 1.279.360 - 1.279.360
Investments available for sale 22.265.133 - - - - 319.310.042 - - - - 341.575.175 - 341.575.175
Total value of on balance sheet 324.557.186 74.366.099 215.986.187 881.688.310 144.431.632 320.085.085 10.695.482 117.790.789 83.388.161 1.892.676.440  4.065.665.371 792.285.361 3.273.380.010
items subject to credit risk (a)
Other on balance sheet items not 54.391.088 - - - - - - - - - 54.391.088 - 54.391.088
subject to credit risk
Total assets 378.948.274 74.366.099 215.986.187 881.688.310 144.431.632 320.085.085 10.695.482 117.790.789 83.388.161 1.892.676.440  4.120.056.459 792.285.361 3.327.771.098
Credit risk exposure related to off-
balance sheet items:
Letters of guarantee, Letters of 4.265.108 1.558.215 47.570 16.951.567 27.930.957 33.903 145.294 610.010 6.855.654 916.602 59.314.880 . 59.314.880
Credit and other guarantees
Undrawn facilities and credit limits 9.255.503 15.994.681 5.150.072 29.138.285 12.538.863 113.296 6.850.319 4.668.543 23.254.510 47.294.101 154.258.173 . 154.258.173
that cannot be revoked
Total value of off balance sheet 13.520.611 17.552.896 5.197.642 46.089.852 40.469.820 147.199 6.995.613 5278553  30.110.164 48210703  213.573.053 ; 213.573.053
items subject to credit risk (b)
I?e‘g: t"r?éie(;’ilf)x"°5”'e subject to 338.077.797 91.918.995 221.183.829 927.778.162 184.901.452 320.232.284 17.691.095 123.069.342  113.498.325 1.940.887.143  4.279.238.424 792.285.361 3.486.953.063
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Credit risk exposure associated with
balance sheet items

Cash at Central Banks
Loans and advances to financial
institutions

Loans and advances to customers
Derivative financial instruments

Investments available for sale

Total value of on balance sheet
items subject to credit risk (a)

Other on balance sheet are not
subject to credit risk

Total assets

Credit risk exposure related to
off-balance sheet items:
Letters of guarantee, Letters of
credit and other guarantees
Undrawn facilities and credit
limits that cannot be revoked
Total value of off balance sheet
items subject to credit risk (b)
Total value of exposure subject to
credit risk (a+b)

99

31.12.2013
Credit
institutions & Manufacturi Real estate Wholesale Public Other Individuals
other anuiacturin . qevelopmen Construction and retail Transport Tourism and small Total Provisions Total net value
. N g and crafts sector sectors A
financial ts trade businesses
services
22.493.838 - - - - - - - - - 22.493.838 - 22.493.838
232.180.826 - - - - - - - - - 232.180.826 - 232.180.826
5.154.796 69.322.788 454.109.361 1.293.657.537 138.138.951 1.115.195 7.635.011 121.230.211 91.114.128 1.984.277.467 4.165.755.445 698.693.899 3.467.061.546
2.469.601 - - - - - - - - - 2.469.601 - 2.469.601
1.650.571 - - - - 15.449.950 - - - - 17.100.521 - 17.100.521
263.949.632 69.322.788 454.109.361 1.293.657.537 138.138.951 16.565.145 7.635.011 121.230.211 91.114.128 1.984.277.467 4.440.000.231 698.693.899 3.741.306.332
62.313.891 - - - - - - - - - 62.313.891 - 62.313.891
326.537.392 73.012.171 454.683.690 1.298.299.019 148.139.071 16.565.145 8.606.688 122.712.179 99.906.035 1.953.852.732 4.502.314.122 698.693.898 3.803.620.223
501.105 743.674 210.400 23.606.857 25.390.903 - 263.039 1.799.099 11.663.352 2.252.120 66.430.549 - 66.430.549
1.678.968 16.854.213 5.092.860 32.513.502 6.382.937 - 6.721.139 2.450.063 44.054.228 49.557.081 165.304.991 - 165.304.991
2.180.073 17.597.887 5.303.260 56.120.359 31.773.840 - 6.984.178 4.249.162 55.717.580 51.809.201 231.735.540 - 231.735.540
266.129.705 86.920.675 459.412.621 1.349.777.896 169.912.791 16.565.145 14.619.189 125.479.373 146.831.708 2.036.086.668 4.671.735.771 698.693.899 3.973.041.872
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Credit risk (cont.)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss in economic valueimcome, that arises from unfavourable
impact in price or volatility that is observed intérest rates, exchange rates, shares, bonds or
commodities.

The management policy followed for Market risk aallvas the accepted limits are set by the
Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), within whidhe Treasury Division operates. The

Asset and Liability Committee acts within the paedens set by the relevant policies of Alpha
Bank Group and in particular according to the Bolicanuals and Procedures in areas of
market risk and the management of assets andtiiedil

The Bank has set limits for the following risks:

e Currency risk position for spot & forwards
e Interest rate risk
e Credit risk on interbank transactions and bonds

Positions held in these commodities are contingouginitored and assessed for percentage cover
and for any potential excess of current limits.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the different reatipent dates in the interest bearing assets and
liabilities of the Bank. The Bank analyses theiiast rate gaps for each time period for each

currency (interest rate gap analysis) for all titeriest bearing elements and uses this analysis
for measuring the effects of a change in intera&srin its revenues. The above analysis

enables the Bank to measure the effects of aresiteate change to its Economic value, as

well as the net interest income, enabling the Bankonitor effectively interest rate risk.

Currency Change in Impact on net Impact on
interest rate interest income (for | equity (€'000)
scenario a period of one
(parallel shift year)
in yield curve) (€°000)
+50 945 5.478
EURG 50 (945) (5.478)
+50 293 939
US DOLLAR 50 (293) (939)
+50 (1.408) 1.435
SWISS FRANC -50 1.408 (1.435)
, +50 (109) 143
Other Currencies =) 109 (143)
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS RELATING TO INTEREST RATE RISK AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

CURRENCY - USD ($)

Cash

Loans and advances to financial institutions
Loans and advances to corporates

Loans and advances to individuals
Derivative financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Deposits from financial institutions
Deposits from customers
Derivative financial liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION IN USD

101

Non-
1month 1 year More interest
Upto7 810 30 to 4106 71to 12 to than bearing
Total days days 3 months months months  5years 5 year position
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000s €000
252 - - - - - - - 252
41.903 41.186 717 - - - - - -
15.539 63 8.091 1 55 1.277 543 3.528 - 1.486
13.458 195 2.503 2.145 931 124 - - 7.560
78.921 26.304 - 52.617 - - - - -
150.073 67.748 11.311 55.313 2.208 667 3.528 - 89.29
390 390 - - - - - -
141.170 34.083 11.846 #5.69 12.066 12.842  44.299 10.340 -
141.560 34.473 11.846 15.694 12.066 12.842  44.299 0.340 -
8.513 33.275 (535) 39.619 (9.858) (12.175)(40.771) (10.340) 9.298
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Interest Rate risk (cont.)

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS RELATING TO INTEREST RATE RISK AT 31 DECEMBER 2014(cont.)

Non-
1month 1 year More interest
Upto7 810 30 to 4106 7to 12 to than bearing
Total days days 3 months months months  5years 5years position
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
CURRENCY - EURO (€)
Cash 74.305 63.450 - - - - - - 10.855
Loans and advances to financial institutions 1772 172.729 - - - - - - -
Investment securities available for sale 341.242 .00 - 120.000 170.028 40.214 1.000 - -
Loans and advances to corporates 978.837 155.206 .46Z5 181.837 24.737 7.373 45.401 - 488.821
Loans and advances to individuals 646.927 141.490 7.516 126.742 7.846 3.811 19.762 - 279.759
Derivative financial assets 923.609 16.633 - 331.92 410.201 164.855 - - -
TOTAL ASSETS 3.137.649 559.508 142.979 760.499 612.812 216.253.168 - 779.435
Deposits from financial institutions 643.239 94.919 434.756 70.024 40.038 3.502 - - -
Deposits from customers 1.923.582 231.017 158.72137.821 349.120 511.459 389.318 45.271 865
Subordinated bonds 100.256 - - 100.256 - - - - -
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2.667.077 325.936 593.477 408.091 389.158 514.9689.338 45.271 865

NET POSITION IN EURO 470.572 233.572 (450.498) 352.408 223.654 (298.708323.155) (45.271) 778.570
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Interest Rate risk (cont.)

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS RELATING TO INTEREST RATE RISK AT 31 DECEMBER 2014(cont.)

1month 1 year More  Noninterest
Upto7 810 30 to 4106 7to 12 to than  bearing
Total days days 3 months months months  5years 5years position
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
CURRENCY - SWISS FRANC (CHF)
Cash 9 - - - - - - - 9
Loans and advances to financial institutions 1.825 1.825 - - - - - - -
Loans and advances to corporates 224.664 921 4.4286.740 15.846 - - - 116.732
Loans and advances to individuals 671.410 25.249 7.118 70.594 15.965 1.813 - - 390.616
Derivative financial assets - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS 897.908 27.995 171.598 157.334 31.811 1.813 - - 3507
Deposits from customers 1.877 114 3 7 1.511 22 176 44 -
Derivative financial liabilities 931.470 16.633 - 332.668 415.835 166.334 - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 933.347 16.747 3 332.675 417.346 166.356 176 44

NET POSITION IN SWISS FRANCS (35.439) 11.248  171.595 (175.341) (385.535)  (163).54 (176) (44)  507.357




38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Interest Rate risk (cont.)
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS RELATING TO INTEREST RATE RISK AT 31 DECEMBER 2014(cont.)

CURRENCY - USD ($)

Cash

Loans and advances to financial institutions
Loans and advances to corporates

Loans and advances to individuals
Derivative financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Deposits from financial liabilities
Deposits from customers
Derivative financial liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION IN USD
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1month 1 year More  Non interest
Upto 7 810 30 to 4106 71012 to than  bearing
Total days days 3 months months months  5years 5 years pPosition
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
325 - - - - - - - 325
8.953 8.082 871 - - - - - -
13.300 4.086 5.821 67 1.465 - - - 1.861
8.503 280 3.379 9972 1.043 229 - - 575
160.581 14.975 98.361 7.24b - - - - -
191.662 27.423 108.432 50.309 2.508 229 - - 2.761
1.002 1.002 - - - - - - -
190.715 141.944 22.536 482.5 5.796 6.744 1.152 - -
9 - - 9 - - - - -
191.726 142.946 22.536 12.552 5.796 6.744 1.152 - -
(64) (115.523)  85.896 37.757 (3.288) (6.515) (1.152) - 2.761




38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Interest Rate risk (cont.)
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS RELATING TO INTEREST RATE RISK AT 31 DECEMBER 2013(cont.)

CURRENCY - EURO (€)

Cash

Loans and advances to financial institutions
Investment securities available for sale
Loans and advances to corporates

Loans and advances to individuals
Derivative financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Deposits from financial liabilities
Deposits from customers
Subordinated bonds

Derivative financial liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION IN EURO
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1month 1 year More  Non interest
Upto 7 810 30 to 4106 71012 to than  bearing
Total Days Days 3 months Months Months Syears 5years position
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
41.754 22.494 - - - - - - 19.260
210.12 217.120 - - - - - - -
17.101 - 4,513 - 28 - 1.000 - 1.560
1.372.566 699.19931.242 211.595 149.161 762 - - 180.611
640.911 389.007 06.381 44.815 8.725 1.547 - - 90.436
1.407.100 29.041 488.01 9 247.036 648.000 - - -
3.696.552  1.356.857 735.150 256.419 404.950 650.304..000 - 291.867
1.085.474 35366 726.635 - - 3.203 - - -
1.803.641 559.538 274.53250.624 223.392 302.793 191.839 - 903
100.274 - - 100.274 - - - - -
184.176 15.000 1196 50.000 - - - - -
3.173.565 930.174  1.120.343 400.918 223.392 305.918%1.839 - 903
522.987 426.683 (385.193) (144.499) 181.558 344.313 (190.839) - 290.964
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Interest Rate risk (cont.)

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS RELATING TO INTEREST RATE RISK AT 31 DECEMBER 2013(cont.)

1month 1 year More  Non interest
Upto 7 810 30 to 4106 71012 to than  bearing
Total days days 3 months months months  5years 5years position
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
CURRENCY - SWISS FRANC (CHF)
Cash 24 - - - - - - - 24
Loans and advances to financial institutions 519 951 - - - - - - -
Loans and advances to corporate 482.387 6.531 0128. 176.505 106.816 - - - 64.520
Loans and advances to individuals 873.775 65.063 0.548 194.238 33.979 2.789 - - 127.132
Derivative financial instruments 19.143 - 19.143 - - - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS 1.375.848 72.113 597.732 370.743 140.795 2.789 - 191.676
Deposits from customers 1.925 459 - 1.466 - - - - -
Derivative financial liabilities 1.384.816 - 48895 - 244,379 651.678 - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1.386.741 459 488.759 1.466 244.379 651.678 - -

NET POSITION IN SWISS FRANCS (10.893) 71.654 108.973 369.277 (103.584) (648.889) - - 191.676




107
ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises from maintaining arroposition in one or more foreign currencies. The
Bank maintains a small position in foreign curresciwhich in each case is much lower than the
approved limits set by the Central Bank and theefAasid Liability Committee (ALCO). Due to this,
the impact on the income of the Bank is not malgriaffected by foreign currency changes and
consequently no sensitivity analysis is requiretegpect to this issue.

With regard to loans in foreign currency, the Banitigates its exchange risk through the use of FX
swaps. Therefore the effect of the devaluatiohefEuro against the Swiss Franc in January 20détis
expected to significantly impact the results of Bamnk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the potential difficultyn finding adequate liquid funds to cover the
obligations of the Bank; that is the replacemerthefexisting funds as they come due or withdrawn,
to meet customer needs for further advances. Th& Bmnitors the maturity of its assets and liailetit
and takes measures to manage liquidity risk uridectirrent economic conditions.



38. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Liquidity risk (cont.)

31.12.2014

Assets

Cash and deposits with Central Bank of Cyprus
Loans and advances to financial institutions

Loans and advances to customers (after impairment)
Investment securities available for sale

Derivative financial assets
Other assets

Liabilities

Subordinated bonds

Deposits from financial institutions
Deposits from customers
Derivative financial liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Off balance sheet items
Letter of guarantees

Undrawn Credit facilities
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With no Between
fixed On demand 8 days to 3 months More than
maturity 0-7 days 3 months and 1 year 1 year Total
€ € € € € €
- 470.868 63.453.762 - - 74.864.630
- 218.666.416 1.769.110 - - 220.435.526
173.025.874 11.087.778 148.355.757 289.146.104 5202.097 2.646.639.610
1.650.571 320.827.859 - - 19.096.745 341.575.175
- - - - 1.279.360 1.279.360
3.707.055 - _ _ - 3.707.055
178.383.500 561.992.921 213.578.629 289.146.104 452100.202 3.288.501.356
- - 712.492 2.137.483 107.124.944 109.974.922
- 26.175.956 14.289.676 31.205.523 586.326.211 9857365
- 106.716.722 455.481.766 939.552.389 607.868.811.1092619.688
- 8.864.569 - - - 8.864.569
23.531.001 - - - - 23.531.001
23.531.001 141.757.247 470.483.934 972.895.395 11330.966 2.909.987.543
- 2.647.068 11.715.429 32.156.163 6.837.389 53.356.049
- 24.362.231 137.193.158 255.032 - 161.810.421
- 27.009.299 148.908.587 32.411.195 6.837.389 B65470

Note 1:Liabilities are stated based on the estimated paymn maturity.
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Liquidity risk (cont.)

31.12.2013

Assets

Cash and deposits with Central Bank of Cyprus
Loans and advances to financial institutions

Loans and advances to customers (after impairment)
Investment securities available for sale

Derivative financial assets

Other assets

Assets

Liabilities

Subordinated bonds

Deposits from financial institutions
Deposits from customers
Derivative financial liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Off balance sheet items
Letter of guarantees

Undrawn Credit facilities
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With no Between
fixed On demand 8 days to 3 months More than
maturity 0-7 days 3 months and 1 year 1 year Total
€ € € € € €
- 0pp125 22.493.838 - - 42.507.963
- 226.997.955 5.182.872 - - 232.180.827
585.568.896 21.527.368 42.171.954 156.049.660 21881669 3.467.061.547
1.650.571 13.904.955 - - 1.544.995 17.100.521
- - - - 2.469.601 2.469.601
5.253.241 - - _ 0 5.253.241
592.472.708 282.444.403 69.848.664 156.049.660 52/68.265 3.766.573.700
- - 749.083 2.247.250 110.487.167 113.483.500
- 5.076.578 42.904.977 8.687.197 1.060.634.215 713D2.967
- 428.447.313 786.969.990 509.201.008 319.500.224.0442118.535
- 15.669.463 - - - 15.669.463
24.344.098 - - - - 24.344.098
24.344.098 449.193.354 830.624.050 520.135.455 01629.606 3.314.918.563
- 9.846.831 14.595.374 30.306.369 6.891.155 61.639.729
- 27.369.738 142.471.041 255.032 - 170.095.811
- 37.216.569 157.066.415 30.561.401 6.891.155 231540

Note 1:Liabilities are stated based on the estimated paymn maturity.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of direciralirect losses arising either from internal
inadequate procedures and systems, human behawvioother external factors, including
legal risk.

The Bank has implemented the Operational Risk Mamagpt Framework as analysed in
Alpha Bank Group policy. The basic pillars of thidicy are listed below:

e The organisational structure of managing operatiosia
e The collecting and processing of data relatingperational risk events
e The evaluation of the risk and the determinatiorigk mitigation action

Under this Framework, the Bank operates an Opeati®Risk Management Committee
which is overseeing the implementation of the opanal risk management policy of the
Bank and its activities and actions related todtfiective management of operational risk.

Within the above framework, all data is recordethia specialized system which is located at
the parent company Alpha Bank S.A. This is thd wsed for input and processing of
operational risk data that is classified accordm@anking activity sector as defined by Basel
agreement

Simultaneously the Bank in cooperation with AlphenB Group has established a number of
Risk Indicators for which it collects data. Thesdicators help monitor operational risk.

In managing operational risk, structured self-as®esnts are conducted by business units as
well as infrastructure and support units with tiva af identifying, recording, and evaluating
potential operational risk and action plans ardteldato counter it.

Regulatory compliance

The Bank operates an independent Regulatory Congaidivision as required by the
provisions of the Central Bank of Cyprus directif@amework of Principles of Operation
and Criteria of Assessment of Bank's Organisatiostalicture, Internal Governance and
Internal Control Systems”.

The Compliance Division is administratively indegdent of other units responsible for risk
management, or executive duties, or other auditefmal audit duties. The division reports
directly to the Managing Director, is supervisedtbg Alpha Bank Group Compliance Head
and reports to the Board of Directors of the Bahtough the Audit Committee.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Regulatory compliance(cont.)

The aim of the Compliance Division is the prevemtiand effective management of
compliance risks, according to the relevant comgkaframework (Regulatory Compliance
Risk) that may arise from the business activitytloé financial institution. This can be
achieved through the establishment of adequateigsland processes, and the adoption of
recognition control, monitoring mechanism of releveontrols, aiming at the preservation of
the integrity and reputation of the Bank.

Additionally, through the Compliance officer, asfided in the Central Bank for the

“Prevention of money laundering and terrorism fitiag”, implements appropriate

procedures aiming timely and ongoing compliancetltd Bank with the supervisory

framework in place, in relation to the preventidrite financial system being used for money
laundering and terrorism financing.

Financial assets — liabilities subject to offsettig

On 31 December 2014, there were no transactionstiarh the Bankvas required to offset its
financial assets or financial liabilities in accande with the requirements of IAS 32.

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The Cyprus economy, despite local and foreign firerdifficulties, decreased in 2014 by 2,3%
compared to 5,4% of 2013. The performance for 2844 much better than originally anticipated
by Troika.

The resilience of the Cyprus economy is mainly authe positive performance of the tourism and
services sectors as well as the reduction in labmsts. Another important role was the
development of confidence to the local econont/the financial sector.

Despite the encouraging performance of the economgmployment continues to remain at the
same high levels with 2013. (16,2 in 2014, 15,9%043).

In contrast to unemployment, there was a drop Eraye consumer prices which mainly came
from the reduction in rents, the prices of locabduction and the cost of electricity. In an
environment defined by subdued economic activitithvadjustments in wages and low energy
prices, inflationary pressures are expected to iresubdued in the medium term.

Confidence in the Cypriot Economy increased duthéocontinuous positive reviews by Troika.
This resulted in the upgrade of the sovereign gatinthe Republic of Cyprus by the international
credit rating agencies, thus increasing the pdambiof borrowing from international markets.

Fiscal consolidation efforts in public finances tioned and the objectives of the program agrees
with Troika were met comfortably. The fiscal balarduring 2014 recorded a surplus of €68 mil.
in contrast to a deficit of €844 mil. for 2013. Timal positive effect amounted to €912 mil.
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT (cont.)

The financial performance of Cyprus was one ofliast for the Eurozone in 2014, and was
mainly achieved due to further consolidation meesuas well as a more efficient tax
collection. Total government spending continued decrease reflecting a prudent
implementation of the state budget.

The challenges facing the economy and the finasgeator, are mainly related with the high
percentage of non-performing loans as well as tsemwable delay in the implementation of
new foreclosures law. The implementation of thevaht law, is expected within 2015, in
conjunction with the implementation of the new aindéined insolvency law.

Despite the challenges faced by the financialesystall systemic banks have been fully
recapitalized and have successfully passed thssstests imposed by the European Central
Bank in 2014. The Quantitative Easing programmeoanoed by the European Central Bank
is expected to have a positive effect. The RepublicCyprus will not participate in the
programme until it successfully completes the @mesessment by Troika.

The challenges expected to face the Cypriot econdaring 2015, are related with the
surrounding uncertainty of the European econaomiwval, the economic crisis in Russia and
the political and economic uncertainty in Greece.

Because United Kingdom is a traditional sourcéoafism, positive impact is expected from
the growth of UK economy and the devaluation ofdEagainst UK sterling

The economy, according to a report issued byrternational Monetary Fund, is expected to
grow by 0,4% in 2015.

FAIR VALUE
The fair value represents the amount that an ewtityld have received upon the disposal of
an asset or the amount that the entity would haié im order to transfer a liability, in an

ordinary transaction between market participaritdyevaluation date.

The table below depicts the fair value of finanéfestruments which measures fair value not
based on the fair value hierarchy assessment stigigid using amortizing method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabities not measured at fair value

Financial assets
Loans and advances
to customers

Financial liabilities
Subordinated bonds
Deposits from
customers

Financial assets
Loans and advances
to customers

Financial liabilities
Subordinated bonds
Deposits from
customers

31.12.2014
Total fair Total book
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value value
€ € € € €
- - 2.646.775.000 2.646.775.000 2.646.639.610
60.643.000 - 60.643.000100.256.117
- - 2.097.371.000 2.097.371.000 2.095.462.364
31.12.2013
Total fair Total book
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value value
€ € € € €
- - 3.467.112.000 3.467.112.000 3.467.061.546
50.000.000 - 50.000.000100.274.358

- 2.032.364.778 2.032.364.778 2.031.940.141

The fair value of deposits and subordinated bosdsaiculated on the basis of interbank
interest rate curve after subtracting the margirawth type of deposit. The future cash flows
are discounted depending on the duration of thesieand the corresponding interest rates.

The fair value of loans is calculated on the baGisterbank interest rate curve to which both
the liquidity premium and the credit risk spreae added.

The fair value of all other financial assets amdbilities measured at amortized cost does not
materially differ from the respective carrying amau
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40. FAIR VALUE (cont.)

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabities measured at fair value
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31.12.2014
Total fair
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
€ € € €
Financial Assets
Investment available for sale - 339.924.604 1.650.571 341.575.175
Derivative financial assets - 1.279.360 ) 1.279.360
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities - 8.864.569 - 8.864.569
31.12.2013
Total fair
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
€ € € €
Financial Assets
Investment available for sale - 15.449.950 1.650.571 17.100.521
Derivative financial assets - 2.469.601 - 2.469.601
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities - 15.669.463 - 15.669.463

To determine the fair value of the Group investmarthe company JCC Payments Systems

Limited at Level 3 equity method has been used.

The various levels are defined as follows:

e Level 1 —quoted prices (unadjusted) in active re@rkor identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices incluitelbvel 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as priges indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability thae arot based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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40. FAIR VALUE (cont.)

The table below presents the reconciliation ofdpening balance with the closing balance of fair
values categorized in Level 3 of the fair valueduiehy.

Investments
available
for sale
€
2014
Balance 1 January 1.650.571
Transfers To/From Level 3 -
Purchases/Disposals -
Changes in fair value -
Balance 31 December 1.650.571
Investments
available
for sale
€

2013
Balance 1 January 1.650.571
Transfers To/From Level 3 -
Purchases/Disposals -
Changes in fair value -
Balance 31 December 1.650.571

Throughout the period there were no transfersdwoiftevel 3 hierarchy of fair values.
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41. CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The capital adequacy of the Bank is supervisedhieyparent company Alpha Bank S.A.,
which is considered to be significant credit indttn for the Single Supervisory Mechanism
of the European Central Bank. Supervision is aemsalong with the support of local
supervisory authorities. The Central Bank of Cypsitkin the context of its supervisory role,
has adopted the European Guidelines for bankingrsigion.

During 2013, the Central Bank of Cyprus requirexd,Rillar 1, a minimum 8% Core Tier |
ratio plus a margin which was calculated basedhenpercentage of the assets of the Bank
compared to the gross domestic product of the RepaibCyprus.

In addition, the Central Bank of Cyprus requirechiaimum Tier | ratio equal to Core Tier |
plus a margin of 1,5% and a minimum total capitdéquacy ratio equal to Tier | plus a
margin of 2%.

On 31 December 2013, the Central Bank of Cyprusased the Core Tier | ratio to 9%, with
a temporary suspension (with no minimum) of theitehpequirements for Tier | and total
capital adequacy ratio.

Since 1 January 2014, a new regulation is in fdtgewn as CRR and a new directive known
as CRD IV, which constitute the European regulaifsamework in implementing Basel 1.

CRR Regulation, which is binding on all membetesgeaof the European Union, defines the
new requirements with regard to capital, liquidityd leverage. Furthermore, the regulation
brings changes in the definition of capital, thdcakation of risk weighted assets and
introduces new measures relating to the calculatideverage and liquidity.

The CRD Directive, which should be adopted bychemember state, defines the capital
buffers and the minimum capital requirements whichncial institutions must maintain , as
well as the practices that should be followed ispeet to governance, compensations, and
transparency. The Central Bank of Cyprus, with@wio harmonizing with CRD IV, has
proceeded to transfer the provisions of the abavecBive by amending the Banking law and
by introducing the new Macro-Prudential OversigatMof 2015.

The implementation of the regulation allows foransition period for some of the increased
capital requirements and other measures. The C&ank of Cyprus on 26 May 2014 set out
the transitional provisions in relation to own fgnd¢h addition, on 29 May 2014, the Central
Bank of Cyprus has set the minimum capital requéneinof Common equity Tier | at 8%.
The Central Bank of Cyprus may require additioregital requirements for risks not fully
covered by Pillar | (Pillar II), considering theopisions of CRD IV and CRR.
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The capital adequacy ratios according to CRR aedrémsitional provisions as adopted by
the Central Bank of Cyprus on 31 December 2014aatysed below:

Regulatory Capital

Transitional Common equity tier I/ Core tier | capital
Transitional additional tidr/ Additional tier |

Transitional tier T capital / Total tier | capital

Tier 1l capital

Transitional total capital /Total capital

Total risk weighted assets

Transitional Common equity tier | ratio / Core tier | ratio

Transitional tier | ratio / Tier | ratio

Transitional Total capital adequacy ratio/
Total capital adequacy ratio

31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€000 €000
Basellll Baselll
378.352 463.439
63.298 64.000
441.650 527.439
67.778 90.000
509.428 617.439
2.507.784 2.920.063
15,1% 15,9%
17,6% 18,1%
20,3% 21,1%

42. PARTICIPATION OF DIRECTORS IN THE BANK'S SHARE CAPITAL

The Board of Directors members, their spouses hgeit thildren do not hold directly or
indirectly any interest in the Bank’s share capitalaccordance with article 60(4) of the
Cyprus Stock Exchange Law at 31 December 2014.

During the period covering from 31 December 2014 38 days before the notification for
convening the Annual General Meeting, there wer8umuations in the above ratios.
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties includes the spouses, the childreh companies in which any Board of
Director members or key management personnel haitdstly or indirectly at least 20% of
the voting rights in a General Meeting. All tracsans with the board members, the key
management personnel and their related partiggesfermed at arm’s length.

(a) Transactions with Directors of the Board

31.12.2014 31.12.2013

€ €

Loans and advances to Board of Directors
Members and Related Parties 584.616 471.453
Deposits by Board of Directors Members and Related
Parties 655.086 1.003.244
Non executive Directors
Members of the Board fees 55.000 55.000
Executive Directors
Salaries and benefits 538.252 554.262
Social insurance contributions by employer etc. 326. 16.065
Retirement benefits 16.824 23.893
Total remuneration for executive
directors 584.422 594.220

Credit facilities to executive and non-executiveediors, per director, do not exceed 1% of
the Bank’s net assets

(b) Transactions with Key Management Personnel
The Bank considers the members of the Executiveratise as key management personnel.
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €

Loans and advances to Key Management Personnel and
Related Parties 154.348 653.122

Deposits by Key Management Personnel and Related
Parties 941.545 1.694.661

Key Management Personnel

Salaries and benefits 471.807 647.300
Social insurance contributions by employer etc. 8B0. 61.360
Retirement benefits 40.983 85.677

Total remuneration for Key Management Personnel 73 794.337
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont.)
(c) Transactions with parent company

During the year, the parent company Alpha Bank.$As granted guarantees totaling
€25.212.016 (2013: €179.361.029) in relation tonto@nd advances granted to specific

clients.
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €
Assets
Loans and advances to financial institutions 17B.051 227.975.038
Derivative financial instruments 1.279.360  2.469.550
175.030.381 _230.444.588
Liabilities
Deposits from financial institutions 621.025.328 066.460.919
Derivative financial instruments 8.864.569 15.663.4
Bonds 21.860.057 21.646.200
Convertible capital securities 64.000.000 64.000.00
Other liabilities - 59.388
715.749.954 1.167.835.970
From 1 Januray to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €
Income
Interest income 5.868.358 4.520.012
Gain on revaluation of derivative financial
instruments to their fair value 359.604 -
6.227.962 4.520.012
Expenses
Interest expense 4.897.717 4.068.911

Loss on revaluation of derivative financial
instruments to their fair value - 331.325
Staff costs 230.814 -

5.128.531 4.400.236
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont.)

(d) Transactions with Alpha Bank Group companies

31.12.2014 31.12.2013

€ €
Assets
Loans and advances to financial institutions 15.876 26.616
Other assets 2.601 100
18.477 26.716
Liabilities
Deposits by financial institutions 139.598 -
Deposits by customers 22.235.405 19.917.510
Bonds 4.912.553 4.700.000
Other liabilities - 13.334
Other payable accounts 7.389.349 16.261.670
34.676.905 41.092.514
From 1 Januray to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
€ €
Income
Income from commission and fees 745.058 759.145
745.058 759.145
Expenses
Interest expense 852.551 910.645
Expense from commission and fees 23.883 -
Loss on sale of investment in subsidiary - 85.400
Other expenses 837.310 660.151

1.713.744 1.656.196

No profit or loss arose from the sale of loanstteer companies of Alpha Bank Group (note
17).

(e) Transactions with the Hellenic Financial Staitity Fund (HFSF) and its subsidiaries

The Bank did not have any transactions with the HBSIits subsidiaries during the year
2014.
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44. GOING CONCERN

The Bank applied the going concern basis for thgpgees of preparing the financial
statements for 31 December 2014. The main unoégsiin applying the going concern
basis are the financial difficulties in Cyprus &Adkece which resulted in difficulties in the
repayment of loans and advances by customers amel lsss of deposits.

The capital adequacy and liquidity of the Bankale® affected by the parent company Alpha
Bank S.A. and the economic environment in Greecerait resides. The assets and liabilities
held by the Bank with its parent company on 31 Ddwer 2014 are presented in note 43 of
the financial statements. The activities of theepaihave been adversely affected by the crisis
in Greek Public debt and mainly by the participation the restructuring program, (PSI) by

exchanging all of the selected bonds issued byGiteek State and loans guaranteed by the
Hellenic Republic with new bonds with unfavouraldegms. The recession of the Greek

economy, the political developments and the uncegaonomic environment increased the

number of non-performing loans and the loss ofodip, especially at the end of 2014 and

early 2015. The parent company as well as othetesys banks in Greece have received

significant amounts of liquidity from the Stabilijund of the European Central Bank as a
result of the severe lack of liquidity in the Grdednking system.

In 2015 the European Central Bank (ECB) abolistedexemption for securities which are
issued or guaranteed by the Greek Government suadresult they can be used in the open
market operations policy of the Eurosystem irrespe of the fact that they do not satisfy
the minimum credit rating requirements. This degisiloes not have an impact as far as it
concerns to Greek banks, which satisfy their liiteeds via the emergency liquidity fund
of the Bank of Greece, in monetary policy operaiornThe maximum short-term funding
limit is defined by the Board of Directors of tBEB , which is periodically reviewed.

The Board of Directors is not in a position to peeddll the developments which could
adversely impact the Bank and consequently whagaanthey could have on its financial
performance, cash flows, financial position anditehp

On examining the capability of the Bank to operse going concern, the Board of Directors
took into consideration the following:
e the findings of various external and regulatorglitsu

e regular checks regarding the liquidity of the Baaid an evaluation of the impact of
various events

¢ the monitoring of cash inflows and outflows on dydbasis

o reinforcement of the capital base of the Bank du@013 by €129 mil. via issuance of
ordinary shares for €65 mil. and convertible cdpgecurities for €64 mil. thereby
covering its capital requirements

¢ the satisfactory level of capital adequacy ratiohe Bank

o the ability of the Bank to access funding via ttenttal Bank of Cyprus.
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GOING CONCERN (cont.)

¢ the drafting of a business plan, if the need arifmsfurther capital and liquidity
needs.

e reduction of exposure to Greek Government bond€248 mil. by their sale in
2015.

The Board of Directors believes that if is in neeflliquidity or capital, these needs will be
manageable and can be covered. As a result ofibveathe financial statements have been
prepared based on the going concern principle.

ACQUISITION OF EMPORIKI BANK

The Board of Directors of the Bank, in a meetingolhtook place on 19 December 2014
decided that the Bank will purchase 100% of trerettapital from companies of the Alpha
Bank Group, that hold the issued share capitalrop&iki Bank Cyprus Limited, and then
proceed with the merger of Emporiki Bank Cyprus itéd with the Bank through absorption.

On 1.3.2015 the Bank, implemented the decisiothbyBoard of Directors, and completed
the acquisition of 100% of the share capital of Brikh Bank Cyprus Ltd.

On 27/3/2015 the operational and legal mergerehitio companies was completed.

Emporiki Bank Cyprus Limited was founded in 19931 drelonged to the Credit Agricole
Group S.A until 1/2/2013, on which date Alpha B&R. obtained control of Emporiki Bank
S.A. (parent company of Emporiki Bank Cyprus Lirditevhich resulted in Emporiki Bank
Cyprus Limited becoming a subsidiary company of hapBank S.A. Until 1/2/2103,
Emporiki Bank Cyprus Limited operated with a netwoiof 12 branches and provided a
complete range of banking services to individuald amall, medium and large businesses.
On the date of acquisition by the Bank, EmporiknB&yprus Limited had 4 branches.

The benefits of absorption of Emporiki Bank Cyplursited focus on:

o the strengthening of Alpha Banks’s presence indbal market,

e the acquisition of a loans portfolio with high coage of impairment provisions,

o the existence of important synergies relating teraping costs, financing costs and
revenue, which are expected to take place withiaettyears from completion of the
acquisition.

The valuation at fair value of the net assets opé&tiki Bank Cyprus Limited has not been
completed due to the narrow time frame betweernctmpletion of the acquisition and the
publication of these financial statements.
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45. ACQUISITION OF EMPORIKI BANK (cont.)

For this reason, the present Financial Statememtsotl disclose information relating to the
fair and contractual values of receivables acguied the estimated cash flow not expected
to be collected, as well as information relatingcamtingent liabilities and on the value of
intangible assets which will be recognised on cetiph of the accounting merger.

The table below displays the temporary fair valogsiet assets of Emporiki Bank Cyprus
Limited on the date that control was completed.gnB5).

Temporary fair

value
1.3.2015

€000
Assets
Cash and deposits with Central Bank 33.634
Loans and advances to financial institutions 8.403
Loans and advances to customers 362.171
Derivative financial instruments 27
Property, plant and & equipment 372
Intangible assets 31
Other assets 380
Total assets 405.018
Liabilities
Bonds 16.356
Deposits from financial institutions 222.249
Deposits from customers 122.781
Derivative financial instruments 1.477
Other liabilities 1.219
Total assets 364.082
Net assets 40.936
Consideration 39.860

Negative Goodwill 1.076
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ACQUISITION OF EMPORIKI BANK (cont.)

The amount for the acquisition was covered on 30cki&2015 by the issue of 14.974.178
new ordinary shares of nominal value Euro 0,85@iae of Euros 2,662, which were granted
in exchange to former shareholders of EmporikilB@yprus Limited. Therefore the value
of the consideration amounted to €39.860 thousaing.amount of €1.076 thousand represent
the negative goodwill arising based on the prowigidair values.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Acquisition and Merger of Emporiki Bank Cyprus Ltgdi

On 1 March 2015 the Bank completed the acquisitibi00% of the share capital, which
represents the issued share capital of EmporikkEB2yprus Limited and as such became the
sole shareholder.

The acquisition was financed by an increase @ftiare capital of the Bank with the issue of
14.974.178 new ordinary shares of nominal valueo&uW,85, which will be allocated as
exchange to the former shareholders of Emporiki kB&yprus Limited, as part of the
transaction to merge the two banks.

Simultaneously it has been decided by the Groupnfdement the legal and operational
merger of the two companies (Alpha Bank Cyprus techiand Emporiki Bank Cyprus
Limited). The merger was approved by the CentradkBaf Cyprus acting in its capacity as a
supervising authority on 29 December 2014 and sanabusly was approved by the Cyprus
Courts on 13 March 2015.

On 27 March 2015 the operational and the legal erebgtween the two companies was
completed with an official notification by the Retyar of Companies and Official Receiver.

Transfer of loans to a company belonging to AlphalBGroup

On 17 March 2015 loans of carrying €159 mil. wesnsferred to a company belonging to
Alpha Bank Group. The transfer includes the trangfe all the risks and rewards of
ownership and as such they will be derecognised foe bank’s financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issuth&yBoard of Directors of the Bank on 20
April 2015.
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According to the Central Bank of Cyprus Directivhigh entered into force on 21 February 2014,
“Loan Impairment and Provisioning Procedures” ficiah institutions should disclose specific
information regarding the quality of their loan folio. The relevant tables are presented below.

Tables A and B for 31.12.2014 and 31.12.2013 haenlprepared using different definitions to
those used for the preparation of Note 38 Risk &d@ment and therefore these figures are not
comparable.

The disclosures for 2013 have been prepared basedfarmation and tables supplied by the
Central Bank of Cyprus, in February 2014. The CGdridank of Cyprus in February 2015 has
modified the reporting tables . The tables for 284w non performing loans (NPLs) according
to the definitions given by the European Bankinghtuity (EBA). As a result, the tables for
2014 and 2013 are not comparable

According to the EBA technical standards on Forbeee and Non Performing exposures the
following definitions were used for 2014 tables:

Definition of hon-performing exposure

An exposure is considered non-performing when:

e Itis materially past due more than 90 days (adogrtb the materiality definitions given
by the Central Bank of Cyprus)

o The debtor is assessed as unlikely to pay its tcobtigations in full without realization
of collateral, regardless of the existence of aast pue amount or of the number of days
past due

e Itis considered as being in “default” according@R definition, or is considered as
impaired according to IFRS.

Exposures include all on and off balance sheeb®x@s without the use of collaterals, excluding
held for trading exposures

Definition of forborne exposure

An exposure is considered forborne when:
e The forbearance measure includes concessionsdswadebtor facing or about to face

financial difficulties
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LOAN PORTFOLIO ANALYSIS — TABLE A

31 December 2014

Provision for Impairment afeir value

Total Credit Facilities adjustment on initial recognition

) of which exposures with forbearance F_’rO\-ll—ios_EiL for ) ot wihich exp%s(: ;;s”\évisth forbearance
Gross Loans and  of which non measures impairment of which non -
advanceb performing and fair value performing
Exposures with of which non on initial Exposures with of which non
forbearance measures  performing recognition forbearance measures  performing
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
General Governments 1.059 - - - 38 - - -
Other financial corporations 18.516 6.138 956 66€ 3.353 1.693 122 102
Non-financial corporations 1.576.620 913.888 165.320 123.97¢ 388.766 346.874 36.399 29.076
of which: Small and Medium-sized Enterprises 1.576.620 913.888 165.320 123.97¢ 388.766 346.874 36.399 29.076
of which: Commercial real estate 948.898 525.050 129.625 104.48¢ 207.189 207.189 27.583 22.805
Non-financial corporations per sector 1.576.620 913.888 388.766
Construction 894.925 603.316 258.568
Wholesale and retail trade 154.368 105.076 33.594
Hotel and restaurants 119.116 33.391 13.359
Real estate 218.785 88.978 36.128
Manufacturing 78.665 32.150 16.565
Other 110.761 50.977 30.552
Households 1.842.730 1.058.051 942.469 529.78t 400.128 343.189 214593 166.286
of which: Residential mortgage loans 1.547.321 889.201 816.615 454.97( 319.352 271.288 172.345 130.956
of which: credit for consumption 89.446 47.876 19.122 15.82¢ 15.138 14.326 4,583 4.226
Total 3.438.925 1.978.077 1.108.745 654.42¢ 792.285 691.756 251.114 195.464

1. Excluding loans and advances to central bank<eait institutions.
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ANALYSIS OF LOAN PORTFOLIO BY INDUSTRY — TABLE A

31 December 2013

1. Credit facilities to corporate legal entitie
Constructiol
Real estai
Tourisr
Wholesale and retail tra
Manufacturing
Othel

2. Credit facilities to retail legal entities
Constructiol
Real estal
Tourisr
Wholesale and retail tra
Manufacturing
Othel
3. Credit facilities to private individuals
Credit facilities for the purchase/
construction of immovable prope
(a) owner occupie
(b) for other purpos:
Consumer loar
Credit card
Current accoun
Credit facilities to sole trade

4. Total credit facilities (1+2+3’

Provisions

Total Credit Facilities

ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

Performing credit facilities

€'00(

1.982.06!
1.199.66
435.39¢
110.92-
102.86
56.26:¢
76.94¢

258.824
109.07¢
46.25¢
22.66¢
17.67¢
11.86(
51.29:

1.924.866

1.682.14
495.80¢
1.186.34
172.20¢
13.41%
41.16:
15.93¢«

4.165.755
698.694

Noat restructured facilities

€'00(

155.08:
17.11(
28.94¢
36.15:

8.88(
25.54¢
38.44:

68.007
17.58:
16.98¢
6.14:
5.32(
3.31%
18.66(

496.858

424.36!
154.00¢
270.35t
36.557
8.58¢
23.39¢
3.95¢

719.946
6.736

Restructured facilities
€'00(C

1.064.8¢
638.55-
334.04¢
50.03¢
29.88°
1.01¢
11.24:

37.779
19.07:
4.10¢
6.301
1.022
1.352
5.927

523.035

492.33!

142.36-
349.97¢

24.49¢

1

4.97¢

1.22(

1.625.603
57.500

Total
€'00(¢

1.219.871
655.66¢
362.99¢

86.18¢
38.767
26.56¢
49.68¢

105.786
36.65:
21.09:
12.44;

6.34:

4.66¢

24.587
1.019.893

916.70-
296.37¢
620.33:
61.05¢
8.58¢
28.37¢
5.17¢

2.345.549
64.236
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Non performing credit
facilities

€'00C

762.19!
544.00:
72.40:
24,73t
64.10(
29.69°
27.25¢

153.038
72.42;
25.16¢
10.22:
11.33:

7.191
26.70¢

904.973

765.44!
199.43!
566.01(
111.15:
4.82¢
12.78¢
10.76(

1.820.206
634.458

Alpha Bank Group applies different definitions tms$e of Central Bank of Cyprus, especially in respe restructured facilities. According to the Gpopolicies, any changes to the initial terms daility are
distinguished on the basis of financial difficudtief the debtor to meet its contractual obligatigisamendment to the terms is not considered tt firancial difficulties of a debtor when:
e There was a renegotiation of the terms of the ageeé within the context of good banking practicd ander market conditions

e  There is not an indication that the debtor will naet its contractual obligations
e  The facilities of the debtor, were performing wtiba terms were amended

The amendments of the initial terms on the basa&bole, are not considered for the Group, restrimgts. The analysis of the portfolio on 31.12.204&;0rding to the Group definitions is shown below.

Total Credit facilities
Provisions

Total credit Performing credit facilities
facilities
Not restructured Reschediling
credit facilities Restructured facilities Total
€'00( €0 £€'00C £€'00C £€'00C
4.165.755 719.94€ 1.15(.39C 475.21¢ 2.34E54¢
69€.694 6.73¢€ 22.93¢ 34.562 64.23€

Non performing credit
facilities

€'00C

1.82(.20¢
634.458
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The above table presents the Non-Performing LOdR$ ¢) as defined in the Directive issued by the CB€finition of Non-performing and Restructured
Credit Facilities’ (‘Directive’), which became effive as of 1st July 2013.

Definition of non-performing credit facility

A non-performing credit facility is defined as:
o A credit facility which presents arrears for a pdrof more than ninety days,

e Arestructured facility which at the time of regtturing was classified as non-performing, or présgaccruals for a period of more than sixty
days (these provisions do not apply to facilitdsch were performing as at 15 March 2013, restmact between X8arch 2013 and 30
September 2013 and the modified repayment schedutet include lump sum payment equal to 20% ondn@f the outstanding balance or
grace period over 12 months on interest and gradegover 24 months for capital repayment).

e Restructured more than once over a period of 18&msdffeacilities fully covered by cash collaterats axempted).

Definition of restructured credit facility

A restructured credit facility is defined as:

e Any action of the credit institution that changke terms and/or conditions of debtor’s credit fae8 aiming to deal with the existing or
expected debtor’s difficulties to service the detxtording to the existing repayment program
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LOAN PORTFOLIO ANALYSIS PER LOAN ORIGINATION DATE - TABLEB

31 December 2014

tébLoans Portfolio Loans to non-financial cporations Loans to other financial corporéons Lieato households

Loan Gross Loans Gross Loans Gross Gross
Origination and Non performing and Non performing Loans and Non performing Loans and Non performing
date Advances exposures Provisions  Advances exposures Provisions Advances exposures Provisions Advances exposures Provisions

€'000 €'000 €000 €000 €'000 €000 €'000 €'000 0CE'0 €'000 €'000 €'000
Within 1
year 86.118 58.077 20.267 35.380 23.615 7.671 286 124 89 50.452 34.338 12.507
1-2years 79.508 48.206 19.088 28.971 16.120 7.609 686 497 363 49.851 31.589 11.115
2 - 3 years 165.047 88.809 31.174 92.447 39.467 14.555 1.906 - 259 70.694 49.342 16.360
3-5years 419.527 272.040 94.626 248.696 182.910 63.192 2.224 2.157 422 168.533 86.972 31.012
5-7 years 1.046.642 649.598 278.731 383.822 268.915 129.375 3.017 1.530 715 659.802 379.154 148.641
7-10years 1.372.500 755.197 297.321 590.939 307.839 124.935 4.962 1.448 677 776.304 445.910 171.703
Over 10
years 269.583 106.149 51.079 196.365 75.022 41.431 5.435 382 827 67.093 30.746 8.790
Total 3.437.866 1.978.077 792.247 1.576.620 913.888 388.768 18.516 6.138 3.352 1.842.730 1.058.051 400.128
General
Governments 1.059 - 38

Total 3.438.925 1.978.077 792.285




Additional Risk Disclosures (cont.)

(Unaudited)

LOAN PORTFOLIO ANALYSIS PER LOAN ORIGINATION DATE —

ALPHA BANK CYPRUS LIMITED

TABLE B

31 December 2013

Totabhns Portfolio

Credit facilitieotlegal entities

Credit facilities to private individuals for the
purchase/construction of immovable property

131

Credit facilities to private individuals/Other 2

Loan Total
Origination credit
date facilities
€'000
Within 1 year 51.456
1-2years 134.051
2 - 3 years 85.239
3-5years 543.687
5-7 years 2.532.142
7 - 10 years 547.455
Over 10 years 271.724

Note 1:Credit facilities to private individuals for themrhase/construction of immovable property incltatdlities for housing and other purposes.

Note 2 Credit facilities to private individuals/othendlude all other facilities to individuals

Non performing
credit facilities

€'000

16.557
39.338
32.052
312.005
1.063.885
256.125
100.244

Provisions

€'000
4.280
12.970
8.768
109.170
433.855
87.466
42.184

Total credit

facilities
€'000
26.574
92.681
52.207
273.011
1.328.187
247.119
221.110

Non performing
credit facilities

€'000
11.522
26.715
19.026
190.112
479.246
117.012
71.600

Provisions
€'000

1.226
7.202
3.957
58.032
178.552
34.475
32.243

Total

credit Non performing
facilities credit facilities Provisions
€'000 €'000 0CE'0
10.874 2.079 909
15.138 2.092 718
17.995 3.876 1.071
233.851 99.196 41.869
1.127.845 532.945 233.031
257.937 114.691 43.604
18.509 10.568 2.561

Total
credit
facilities

€'000
14.009
26.232
15.038
36.825
76.110
42.399
32.104

Non performing
credit facilities

€'000
2.957
10.531
9.150
22.697
51.694
24.422
18.077

Provisions

€'000
2.145
5.049
3.740
9.269
22.273
9.387
7.380
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The table below presents the encumbered and unéecachassets of the Bank to the extent that
these assets are pledged for the financial neetiie dfank.

An asset is considered as encumbered if it has pleelged as collateral, either to obtain funding

or in any transaction that requests collateral.hSagset is no longer available for the bank to be
pledged as collateral or obtain funding.

The bank did not have any encumbered assets d2@iby that were pledged as collateral.

CARRYING AND FAIR VALUE OF ENCUMBERED AND UNENCUMBE RED ASSETS

31 December 2014

Carrying amount of Fair Value of Carrying amount Fair Value of
encumbered encumbered of unencumbered unencumbered
assets assets assets assets
€000 €000 €000 €000
Assets
Equity instruments - 1.651 1.651
Debt securities - 339.925 339.925
Other Assets _
Total ; 3.327.771
31 December 2013
Carrying amount of Fair Value of Carrying amount Fair Value of
encumbered encumbered of unencumbered unencumbered
assets assets assets assets
€000 €000 €000 €000
Assets
Equity instruments - - 1.651 1.651
Debt securities - - 15.450 15.450
Other assets B
- 3.786.519

Total

3.803.620
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CARRYING AND FAIR VALUE OF ENCUMBERED AND UNENCUMBE RED
COLLATERALS

31 December 2014

. Fair value
Fair value of
collaterals
encumbered .
) received or own
collateral received o
debt securities
or own debt

issued available

securities issued
for encumbrance

€000 €000
Collaterals received by the Bank
Equity instruments - -
Debt securities - 75.243
Other - -
Own debt securities issued other than own coveoed$
or Asset Backed Securities - -
Total - 75.243
31 December 2013
. Fair value
Fair value of
collaterals
encumbered

received or own
debt securities

issued available

for encumbrance

collateral received
or own debt
securities issued

€000 €000
Collaterals received by the Bank
Equity instruments - -
Debt securities - -

Other - -
Own debt securities issued other than own coveoed®d

or Asset Backed Securities - -
Total - -
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ENCUMBERED ASSETS AND COLLATERALS RECEIVED BY THE B ANK AND

ASSOCIATED LIABILITIES

31 December 2014

Carrying amount of selected financial
liabilities

Total

31 December 2013

Carrying amount of selected financial
liabilities

Total

Matching
liabilities,
contingent
liabilities or
securities lent

€000

Matching
liabilities,
contingent
liabilities or
securities lent

€000

Assets, collateral received and
own debt securities issued other
than covered bonds and Asset
Backed Securities encumbered

€000

Assets, collateral received and
own debt securities issued other
than covered bonds and Asset
Backed Securities encumbered

€000




